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CEMEX Latam H'lj]dings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Condensed Income Statements

(Thousanis of LLS. dollars)

Notes

{Unandited)

Far the niné-ntonth periods endiéd

September 30,
2016

September 30,
2015

Net sales.....

COSLOLSAlES i.1 e cepein s s s s e oo stases s iars s 2B

Gross profit

Adinistrative and SCIDZ CRPTISES .o iieire e sor et sieiar st ses e eaaeevies sare st s sasese et sbmnp s on
Disiribution t}xpenSES_.."..‘-,.;_;.“..‘_..,<...".,.m'....,;'......‘._.,........;,..,.-....._._..._.u.-...-.-.‘_.'.....'._...-....-.-.....,.,.“...:‘

Operating earnings hefore other expénses, net

.Operating earnings

Other financial expénses, net ... 3,6

Foreign exehange resulls. .. i et es e st sesee s es s raen s o ave et smin it anien s sennir

Earnings before income tax

‘CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME .....

Nan-controding, BIETESt DL MEOME .oy reeeesemase st st st b s rbassrensese e

CONTROLLING INTEREST NET INCOME......

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE ..ovovvssvossusmmusmsssrasisssenssissssasissssinistsss 1

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE .19

1,012,153
(516,042)

1,102,080
(380,763}

496,111

(145.887)
{70,665}

521,15

(159,388},
{80.461)

(230,552)

(239,849)

275,55%

(2.707)

281,466

(12.907})

272,852

(49,329)
{331
12,974,

268,559

138,272).
(700)
(17,227

235,966.

{92.047)

192,365,

(74.826)

143,919
{318).

117,539
{415},

143,401

117,124

0.20

0.26.

021

0.21

Thedccompanging nates are part'of these consclidated condensed financial statemenis.

Jorge Tvan.

Gngo-Calderdn
Accountan
T.P 64639~



. CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Cansolidated Condensed Statements of Comprehiensive Inicome
) (Thoiisarids of 11.5. doilars)

{lnaudjted)
For the nine-nionth periods endid
September 30, September 30,

Notes | 2016 W15
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME S 14'3,91_9 117,539
Iems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit orloss when specific

condltmm are met:

Cufrency translation of Orelgn SOBSIAIAITES. ... v s e e cere e et ess s eeneiitonn 45,571 (175.443)
Total other _iterns.ol‘od_mr-comprchcnsivc:in_comc .for._lhe-p_erim’_i“,.,,,,.,...,...,,.. ererreenaes 43,371 {175.443)
CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD ....ovsmmesiessiorsasssinsions 189,490 (57,906)
Nen-controlling interest cemprehensive income.. {318) {415}
CONTROLLING INTEREST GOMPREHENSIVE NCOME FORTHE I’[‘RIOD $ 188,972 (58,321)

The aceompanying ndles arc part o thése consolidated condiénsed Financia] statements.

Ana Maua
Legal Repr

Sentative

Jorge [van AlfdngolCalderdn
Aucounta t



_CEMEK'La_tam Holdings, 8:A. and S_ﬁbsidiarie_s
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets
(Thousawds of LS, dollars)

Notes

{Unaudited)

As of September 30,
2016

As of Decembier 31,
2015

_ _ ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash-and Cash CQUIVBIENTS .. vt crstiencn e ettt erans
Trade receivables less allowancc for daubtf‘ul dccounts
Au.(lu_nls receivable from related Parties ... i e

Othier-accounts receivable, e i veirevrens

TAXEE TEOCIVADIE 1ot eeee oo erea st Fans e aens et ex et e eeneme e den s ses oo amae e aers s
TOVENIOIIES, MEL .oieiitiinseesieeserspere s scaea sases s ssisassr et smes b gt et be e ke reae s ims e re s nsranaseresanisnarmseps s

TTOLA] CUITEIIE BEEE e eiares e eiesie e e viveraes ans seseraes panss e aesbcssrtrassnsas srbabbmmssos trmneeetesteatenmest
NON-CURRENT ASSETS.
Otheer investments.and non-CUITENS aCCOUIES TECEIVADIE .ot et i v iy 0B
Property. machinery and eqUIPMEIL. MEL. ... ...oroinimmeseerecenerspsiensesseasnessesarsg s seersaepssssszens i3
Goodwill. intangible assets'and deferred 855615, AL au it it e e fansi s 14

Def@rret TCOMIE TAXES ... eeviiis oot ece et eeme s mesceare a2 e s s n i pasmaactcoba e ns segasnnns
TOMB] THOI-CUITCIIE BSSEES ettt cereseeresssees e v s asenbeass s s e vt et 4 i itssen e e sime et s enszeesass

TOTAL ASSETS.,
CURRENTI;IA'BILi'_r';_Es
SROI-EEIMIACDL .ot feei e et aansesia s s s reass b e sas s e s s s e sam st i
Trade payables....

I5

Atcounly p.wablc to rchtcd pamcs

Taxes payable ... . " -

Qther-accounts paydble and acn.med EXPENISES. e v i eecsremnbeseitrepssienes saaarvosiesasinsessensisosiriosonss
Tota] Current HabHTES e eee s smeapes s srnesastsenesesengar oo

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Longsterm debt...

Long-term accoiliy pavabIc to rclalcd partles
ERPIOYEE BENCIES 1 1o eoveieeests st e seeesemes s seseeses e ees s seseieeenssenereensseree e .

Deforred ICOIME FEXEE iy ieeeiiiies et ihene s sresias sabasesssstosbesesdes s esabressberi b eesas s sbess s assssndedanien ront
Other non-current labilitics....

Tolal BON-CUTEEAL [IABTLIEES ... e-1vescverirsicsstetoremstemsstensrmsten e re st sesreerenm s es e eresfamaasarearans

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...c......
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

Controlling interest

Common stock-and additional paid-in CAPIEL .. ...cvvvvec v corirssrsriessmserises s sgessrsses

_ ST : 184
OMRER COUIEY FESEIVES. irrrriririeeriviieeeertesasssaresasfabessansssans snenieslbinsssarasssinsssshossnsnsinons srtaromissrien

Retfined earnings. oo oottt ettt ens s st st eesens 15

NEL ICOME v evovrevesieessoreenns

Total wnirollmgmtcrcst
INON-CONTTOIIINE IECEEST .. ceiiiretibeissbursrsireserenssneerasbame s bessbmeinrsess et aseiaebantensasenanisronsnoanish
TOTAL STOCKHQLDERS' EQUITY. :
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® FQl ITY

18B.

18E.

s 46,761
115.804

717

12,448

29,788

T0.867

13563

53,633
91.568
3,222

12,694
25,695
86.134
14,421

289,948

287,369

2841
1.247.216
1.799.452

11,580

20.868
1.093.359
1.786:895

8.439

3:.086.639

2.909.561

§ 3376607

3,196,930

$ 24,936
129445
278.640
56,108
86820

8,067
120,274
268,512
50,634
76,738

575,949

524,245

1.864
738,722
3_8_’._'236
505,693
8,540

8,046
822,388
32.384
484,522
8.530

1,293,035

1,355.870

1,869,004

1,880,115

1.464,990

(829,613)
723,887
143401

1,464.986
(876.387)
627,396

95.491

1.501.663
5.938

1,311,486
5,329

1,507,603

1,316.815

5 3,376,607

3,196,930

The. 2econipanying, nobes are pact of these consolidated condensed financial statements,

Jorge lvin Alfonso Cafderon:
Accountant
T.P64639-T



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
(Thousands of 155, dollirs)

(Unaudited)
For the nine-month periods ended

As of September 30. As of September 30,

Nutes. 2016 2015
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated net income, $ 143,919 117.539
Non-¢cash items;. _
Depr&.‘uiali'on and amortization of assets............. .. .4 64,024 64.817
Provisions and others expenses .. S . {6%) 3219
Financial experse, other ﬁndnmal income dnd fomgn c‘«.hangc resultq 36,886 76,183
Income takes .. e 1TA 92047 74_._8_26
‘Logs on the ‘;al(. Df ['wzt,d A558t8. i v _ 1210 6,818
Changes in working capital, Lxc]udmg ihcome tmcs S S SO DUV [()953 ?..4.3.6;'.2.
Net cash flow provided by aperafing activities before interést and ineome taxes cuaiieenses 354,972 367,774,
Fingneial _e’xpens.e_ paid in-cash {-47192_9_}_ (52,639
Income taxes paid i CaSH ..o i e e sy (84:993) (86.605)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 222050 228,530
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, machinery and eqummmtmt {135,908} (133.143)
Financial income.. 1,389 1.444
Intangible assets dnd olhcr dcﬁ,rlt.d clnrgcs . (3.011 (_41'24'_2'_)
Long term assels and GHHEPS, DEL..oi o i e cevs i st ene s esre s dees e e seeansrbar e s badeon (168} 1,623
Net'eash Nows wsed in investing activities —_ b : - : (139,638) (134,316)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
-Ré_]a_tcd.p_a_li_ics- QEDT PAVIMCIIS. ... ece st gmea s pras s srsassesss th et nnmss s ssnss (622.260) (579,129}
Related partics debl. ... e e 537120 506242
Non-current liabilities, net ....... {5.861}. [‘8;095)
Net cash flows used in ﬁnancmg acm':hes (91,001) {80,982
Increase (decicase) incash and cash cquna]cnl‘: 8.589)y 13.232
Cudsh conversion effécl, nel.. o : 1,715 (6,356)
‘Cash and cash equivalents at befxmnmg ofthe pumd 53,635 31772
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD ... rerndesesasssiriaiaass 718 46761 58,448
Changes in working capital, excluding income taxes:
“Trade: lLLLlVabiCb net.. .y (23.972) 12542
Othér gocounts receiy ablc and olhm assets .. (]_fgm') 5:039
Inventories... : 15071 11,241
Trade pd}ablt,s bttt ee e e rere e 9_?_.{--7.3 (4.978)
:Shnr‘n-lum leldtcd ptli'tleb. nets, 8.654 (5.04(0
‘Dther accounts payabk, and accrued L\pcnscs . . v . 9,904 4538
Chianges in working capital, excluding incame tﬂxes -~ ' . g 16,953 74,362

The-accompanyidg notes are part of these consoliddted condensed. nancial statemenits,

)

Jorge Tvan Al It on.‘aoé derdn
Accountant
T.P 64639-T
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CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiarics
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nine-month periods dided Sepfember 30, 2016 and 2015
{Thausands of U.S. dollars)

1)  DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A., was constituted.under the laws of Spain on April 17, 2012 as capital stock corporation (S.A.)for an undetincd period
of time, The enlity is a subsidiary of CEMEX Espaia, S.A. ("CEMEX Espafia™). also organized under the laws of Spain, as well as an indircet
subsidiary of CEMEX; S.A.B. de C.V.. a public stock corporation with variable capitat (S:A.B. de €.V:) ofganized under thé laws of Mexico, The.
statutery purpose -and main activities of CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. consist of the subscnplmm acquisition, tenure, enjoyiment, managgément or-
sale of securities and share holdings: as well as the management . and administration of sceurities repr esenting the stockholders” equity (own funds) of
ron-resident entities in Spanish terfitory through the corfesponding, orpanizatisn of malerial and hifhan resources. Bastd on'its statutory ‘purpose,

CEMEX Latam. Holdings, S.A, is the indirect holdiig. company (parent) of enitities whose main activities.located in. Colombia, Papama, Costa Ricd,

\hcaragu.i Guatemala, Bl Salvador and Brazil, ate all oriented to the construction industry. through the production. marketing, distribution and sale ol
cement. reatfy-mix concrete, aggregates and other construction’ materfals, The common shares of CEMEX Latam Holdings, $.A.. are listed in the
Colombian Stock Exchange (Bofsa de Valores dé Colombia, 5.4, 6r "BYC™ under the synitol CLH,

The term the “Parent Company™ used in these accompanying rotes to the. fmdncxal statenients refers to. CEMEX Latam Hloldings, $.A. without its
mbsr(llalu.éa The terms the-~Company” -or “CEMEX Latam™ refer to CEMEX Laiam Holdings, $.A. together with its consolidated ‘subsidiaries.
When the term “CEMEX? is uscd, refers.to CEMEX. S.A.B. de C.V. and/or somc of its subsidiaries, which are not direct or indirect-subsidiaries ol
the Parerit Company.

Thie ‘issuance of these consolidated financial stateimcnts was. authorized by the management and the Board of Director of the Parent Company on
November 9; 2016, prior favorable report of the Audil Committes,

Relevant event and admirisirative changeyand éorporate gevernance.

Regarding the construction ofthe new ¢ement: plant in the municipality of Maceo, . Antioguia.province in Coloinbia {notes 13 and 21B), during the
third quarter, the Company received reports through its-anonymous reporting ling, related to possible-deficiencies-in the purchase process:of the Iand
were the cement plant s located. The Company immediately initiated an internal-audit in accordance with its corporate governance policics and its.
ethics code, and:some irtegularities were founded. As a resulr of thig procéss; on Septeinber 23, 2016, the:Company desided to Tinish the employment.
relationship with fwo executives involved in this transaction immediately: Edgar Ramirez, Vice President of Planning of CEMEX Latam and
CEMEX Colombia. $.A. ("CEMEX Colombia™): And Camilo Gonzdlez. Lt,ga] Counsel of CEMEX Latam and CEMEX Colombia. In addition,
Carlos Jacks, Chiel Executive Officer of CEMEX Latam and President off CEMEX Colombia resigns effective the sarie day Septenber 23, 2016 to
facilitate investigations. CEMEX and CEMEX Latam have -made these Findings known o the appropriate authorities in Colombia. Jaime Muguiro,.
currently ‘President of CEMEX South, Central America and the Caribbean and Chairman of the Board of Directors, temporarily assumed the
fiinetions of Chief Executive: OfTicetof the Company, and President of CEMEX Colombia,

As a result of the events deseribed in the previous paragraph. in order to strengthert levels ol leadership, managerhent and bigst praclices of corpordte.
governance, on Ociober 4, 2016, the Board of Directors of the lloldmi, Company, Jollowing a favorable report from. the Commission Of
Appointments and Remuneration, decided fo separate the roles of Chairman -of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer of CEMEX Latam
and President of CEMEX Coloinbla. Censéquently, the Commission agreed the follow appointments which were-etfective immediately:

. Juan Pabloe San. Agustin was appointed Ch'a_ir'inan of the Board of Direclors ol the Parent Company’.
»  Jaime Muguiro Domin guez was ratified as Chief Exccutive Officer of the Parent Company.
. Ricardo. Naya Barba was appointed President of CEMEX Celombia,

Likewise, the aferementioned Board of Directors, lollomng a favorable report from the Appmmmenls and Remuneration. (.ommittu, agreed {o the
appointmiént of Francisco Aguilera Meéndoza as Vice Presideint of Planning of the. Holding: Cotnpany..

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

The dccuuntlnv policies appln.d 1o these consollda[ed condLnscd financial statements as of Septeriiber-30; 2016, arc the same ‘as those: applled in the
consolidated financial statements as ol December 31.2013.

2A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE
The consolidated condenscd financial statements and the accompanying notes-were prepared in-accordance with International Financial Reporting:

Siandards (*IFRS™) cllective. 4% of Scptember 30, 2016, as issited by the International Acmumlng ‘Standards Board {"TASB™, as well as with the
[nternational Accoimnting $tandard 34, fufer i1t Fmar_ama( Stateineits.



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Naotes to the Consolidated Condensed Fin_anci_al'Statemgnts
For the nine-month périods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands. of U.S. doilars)

Basis of presentation and disclosure - continwéd

Thé: consuliddied condénsed balance sheets as ofSeptember 30. 2014 and us of Décember 31, 2013, as well as the consolidated condensed income
statemnents. the consclidated condensed statements of compréhensive incoine, the'consolidated condensed Eash flows statements and the consolidated.
condensed staterments of changes in stockholders’ ciuity for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, as well as Lheir related
-disclosuies included in the notes to the financial statements, have not been audited.

The TERS consolidatéd Financial statements. arc presented quarterly to the securifies and exchange regulator in Colombia, due to the rcglstrdlmn of the
Parent Company’s shares with the aforementioned authority fortheir wrading on the BVC.

Presentation currency apd dcﬁnit_i_t_m of terms

“The pregentation currency of the consolidated financial statemenits is the doliar of the United States of America (‘Umtcd States™); which is-aiso the
functional currency of the Parent Company considering that, i$ the main currcacy in which the Parent Company fealizes its operations and séttles its
abligations. The amounts in. the financial statements and the accompanying notes are presented in thotsands of dollars of the United States, .excépl
when prLIfIC references are made o other- currency. according with the following paragraph, or different measuring unit like millions. carnings per
shate, prices per share and/or exchange rates. For-¢onveniénce ol the reader, al! amounts disclosed in these notes 1o the financial slateménts, miainly
fn connection with tak or legal procecdings (notes 17B-and 21). which are orlgmaibd in jurisdictions which curiencics are differerit to the doltar; are
presented in dollar equivalents as of Sepiember: 30, ”016 ‘Consequently, despite any change in the: original currency, such dollar amounts will’
fluctuate: over time due to charigés in exchange’ rales. These dollar translations shionld not.be construed as- rupleqmtalmm that the dollar amounts
were, could have been, or could be-converted 4t the indicated exchangé rates, Foreign curfency trauslations. as of September 30, 2016 and December
31,2015, aswell as Lor the nine-month periods ended September 30..2016 and 2015 were determined using the closing.arid average exchangé rates,
as corréspond, presénted in the table of exchange ratés included in note 2D.

When reference is mdde to “$7 or dollar, it-means the dollar of the United Siates.when reference is made 1o “€7 or ‘euros, it means: the cufrency i’
circulation in a significanl number of European Union (“EU™ countries. When reference i made to "¢”.or coloncs, it means colones of the
Repitblica de Costa Rica {*Costa Rica™}. When relerence is made to “R¥” or reales, it means reales of the Repoblica Federativa de Brazit *Brazil”),

When reference is made to “Col$™ or pesos: ft meatis pesos-of the Repiblica de ‘Colombia (“Colombia™), When reference is made to “C$” or
cordobas, it means cordebas of the Repiblica de Nicaragua (“Nicaragua™). When réference j§ made to' “Q$” or duetzales, il medns quctzals of the
Repiiblica de-Guatemala {*Guatemala™).

Income statements

The line flem ~Other expenses, net”™ in the consolidated condensed income statement consists primarily of revenues and expenses not direetly related
Lo the Cofnpany’s.indin activilies. or which arg of an Unusual and/or noii-recurring natire. such as resullts on disposal of assefs,. retoveries Jrom
fnsurance companics, as well as-certain severance paymerits during restrucluring processes, among others {nofe 3).

Statements of cash {lows,

For the nine-month periods ended. Septernber 30, 2016 and 2015, the consolidated condensed stalements of cash flows present éash inflows. and
outflows, excluding unrealized foreign exchange cITecls. as-well as the {oltowing transaction that did not represent sources.or uses of cagh:

+  For the periods ended Scptember 30, 2016 and 2013, the incfease in actounts payable to related parts.to long-term $23,687 and'323.311,
respectivély, relative 1o the capilalizalion-of inlerest.on the.delt with CEMEX companies.

»  For the peried ended September 30, 2016, the recognition of a granted: guarantee on {rusi created to promote: housing' profects: that represented an
increased in short term debr for approximately $7,436 in 2016:as'describe in the notes 108 and 13,

«  Farthe perwds ended Seéptember 30, 2016 and 2015. the net increase in other equity reserves of $1,203 and $1,271, rcspcclweh, and the
incredse in additional paid-in capital of $4 in 2016 and $242 in 20135, were iricurred i connection with cxecutive stock-based compensation (note
188 angd 18D}

Going Concerm

As of September 30, 2016, current liabilities. -which include accounis payable 1o CEMEX vompanies of approximately $278,640 (note-9), excéeded'
cirrent assets ' in $786 001. The Parent Ccmpany 8 Board ol Direelors has dpproved these congolidated- condensed findnclal statements -ds of
September 30, 2016 under the principle of going concern, considering that the Company will gererate. sufficient cash flows to enable it (o0-meet any
liquidity risk in the short term, If it is deeméd riccessdry, the Board of Directors of the Pareat Company considers thal management would succeed in
renegotiating the maturity of som@ short-term payabies fo such CEMEX! compatiies. For the nine month period ended September 30. 2016 and 2015,
CEMEX Latam .generated net cash flows from -operations. after interest ‘expense and income taxes. of approximately $222.050 and $228,530
respectively.



CEMEX Latam Holdings, 5.A. and Subsidiaries.
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nine-month periods ended Seéptember.30, 2016 and 2015
{Thousands of U.5: dollars})

2B}  PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated finanvial statemenis include those of CEMEX Latam Holdings; $.A. and those of the. entities, in which the Parent Company
“gxercises conirol, hy means of which the Parent Compeny is exposed, or has rights, to variable réturns from-its involvenient with the investee and has
the: ability 10 -affect tliose returns through its power over the investee. Among other factors, conirol is evidenced when the Parent Compan) a) holds
dircetly or through subsidiaries. more (han.30% of an entity’s common stock; b) has the power, dircetly or 111d1rcctly to govcm the administrative,
financial -and operatiig policies of an entify.. of ¢} is the primary teceptor of the risks and rew ards Balances and operations betweéen rélaled parties
are c'h'mina_tccl_"in consolidation, Fach subsidiary is 2 legally responsible separate exdity and maibtains custody of its own financial resources.

{Changes in the participation of parent company in:a subsidiary do ot result in 4 Joss of control are accounted for as transactions with owners in theie
capacity as owners. Therefore, .adjustments to non-controlling: interests, w hich are based on 4 propottionate amount, of the net assets of the subsidiary,
not result in adjustments to-goodwill and J orrecoghition of gains or Tosses in the income statement.

2C)  USE OF ESTIMATES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT

The preparation of consélidated condenséd financial stalemient. in accordance with IFRS requires managemen{ to make estimafes and -assumptions-
that affect amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics a5 of the date of reporting, as well as.the revenues
and cxpenses of the. period. These assumptions are: continuously reviewed vsing available information, Actugl resuits could differ from thesc
estimatds.

The main items subjéet to estimates and assumptions inclade, among others, impairinent tests of long-lived assets, allgwances for doubiful accounts
and inventorics, recognition of deferred income tax assets, as well a3 the measurement of financial instruments and the assets and liabilities I'Cl’ﬂt.d tQ
employee henefits; Signilicani judgriient by management is required to appropriately assess the amounts of these assets and liabilifies.

2D} FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN ENTITIES? FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The maost significant closing exthange raics per U.S. dollaras of Scpteinber 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 for balance sheet purposes; and the

average exchange rates per L.S: dollar for income stateménts purposes for the nine-month periods ended Seplember 30, 2016 and: 2013, are as
follows:

2016 2015
Curréncy Closing Average o ‘Closing Average
COIGIMBIAIL PESOS w..rvvvvvseesssesvsssrense e e toss et ssm s sonts s ostbi s e resssane st 2.879.95 3,038.63. 314947 267891
Costa Rican colones....omrerimvenrreeeseses 53880 34943 344.87 54084
NICArABUAN COPAOBAS. ... s orese e reseresereces e msgenrscems s errms g gossomssrnesarses 28.97 2850 27.93 27.14
GUAtemalan GUELZAIES w...v.vrevvsrsssecsescrermsnsss s ooy JPTORUPHPRNN 7.52 7.63 763 7.66
BAZHHAN CERES - c.ervrerererecomesti g e eeomschirssh et e enitedone s 3.25 3.51 3.90 3.23

2E} COST OF SALES, ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Cost of sales représents the cost production of inventorics at it5 selling time’ including depreciation. amortization and depletion of assets involved in
production and expenses related to storage in producing-planis.. Cost of sales excludes expenses related to'personnel. equipment and services involved
in salc activitics and storage of product 4l points of sales, as w ell as costs related to warehousing of products at the-selling. points, which are included
as parl ol administéative 4nd sclling expenses. Cost of sales! includes freight expenses of raw material in plants and delivery éxpenses of the
Coinpany’s ready-mix concretc-business. nevertheless exeludes freight expenses of finished. products hetween plants and points of sale and freiglit
expenses hetweeni points of sales and the customers’ facilities, which are included as parl of the distribution expenses.

For the ning-month periods-ended September 30, 2016 dnd 2013, selling. txpenses included as part of the administrative and selling expenses line
ftem amounted to $24,152 and $28.647 réspectively.

3) SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY GEQOGRAPHIC QPERATING SEGMENTS

The financial policics applied to elaborate the condensed Hnancial information by geographic operative Segiments are corisisterit with those that-aré:
described in the consolidated condensed financial statements for (he nine-month periods ended Septeimber 30, 2016 and 201 5. The segment *Resi-of
CLI" refers 1o the Company’s: operations in Guatemala, Nlcaragua El Salvador and Brazil, In addition, the segment * “Others"” relates mainly to the
Parent Lompdny in¢luding its ‘cotporate offices in Spain and its research and development offices in Switzérland, as well as adjustments and
eliminatigns résulting from consolidation.



Income statements

~ ‘CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries.
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
{Thousands.of U.S. dollars)

Selected consolidated condensed inconie statehrients” information by geographic eperating segments for the nine-month periods ended September 30,
2016 and 2013 are as foliow:

NetSales Liess: Operating ‘Other
{inctuding: Depreciation ciarnings Othier financial
related Less: Related Operating ind before other exXpenses, Financial  expenses,
2016 parties) parties Net:Sales  EBITBA amorfization expenses: nét net expenses niet
Colombia ............ $ 511,821 (36)  SL1785 176,054 (19,567 156,487 387 (1LG47) (10200
Panama............... 199,609, — 199,609 90,364 (13,5300 76,834 417 (6.030) 691
Costid Rica............ 133,982 (14,447 119.335. 48,615 (4:689) 43,926 (13) {303) 125
Rest gf CLHL.,...... 198.626 (1465 157,161 64.748 {4.17%) 60,570 398 (2.267) 953
Ohers .oz, (15,937). - £13.937) (40,195 {22.063) (62.238) (3.894) (29.660)  (1,280)
Tt rrsivsriraernarns S 1,028, 10 (15,948) 1,012,153 339,583 {64.024) 275,559 (2,707} (49,329} {331)
NetSales Less: -Operating Other
{(including Deprecigtion carmings Other financial
o related Less: Related ) Opérating and before other eXpenses, Financial  éxpenses,
2015, parties) partics NefSales  EBITDA  amortization  expenses. net net expenses net
Colombia ...........8 551,439 (LI6) 351,323 188502 (19.947) 168.535 2,104 {10,943y (L3749
PARAMA, oo 224,083 (167) 223,916, 91,526 {13.977) 77.549 7.667 (5.073) 38
Costa Rica..iouee.ns 141.56% (10.610) 130,959 54066 {4.803) 49261 (113} (273) 31
Rest of CLH.........: 210.598 {2.049) 208:349° 57.247 (3.679) 53.568 _{265'} 3. 1'9'9)_ 762
Ohers .ovevvrmases {12.667) (12.667) (43.058) {22.409) (67,467) (22.300) (38.780) {7}
Totali i asivimn B 1,115,022 (12,942) [.102.080° 346,283 {64.817) 28166 (12.907) (58.272) (700)

Net safes by-product and geographic operating segments for the nine-month periods ended September 30; 2011 6:and-2015 ape as folloivs:

. 206 Cement Concrete Agaregates Cther produits Qthers Net sales
Colombia oo, 291,346, 179,064 9,975 31,200 ~ 511.785
PANENL .oy crieressossie e rereaenariesann 129,244 61,636 2,938 5,791 - 199.609
G05ta RiCh..vcc. i eien e sre s, 76,506 12,688 17:258 13,083 - 119.535
Restolf CLH e 170,840 13,671 1,773 10,875 ~ 197,161
OhETS v - - - — (13.937) (15937
“Total 668,136 267,059 31.946 60,949 {13.937) 1.012,153

2015 Cement Coticrete’ Aggregites Other products. Othirs Netsales

COIOMIDIZ it 295,693 216,845 12,554 26.231 - 551.323
Panama....... 141.228 67,300 3326 12,062 - 223916
Costa Rica. ... 88318 14772 13.363 14,5006 - 130,959
ReStof CLH ... voveeeeceemeevecereveiecrerin, 157,976, 19,447 3411 27,715 - 208,544
OIRETS oot — - N o e {12.667) (12,667)
Total... 683215 318,364 32:654 8,514 (12,667} 1,102,080

Balancec sheets

As of Seplember 30. _2'()16 and Decerber 31, 2015, selected consclidated condensed bhalance sheets’ information by geographic segments is as

follows:

» '_Ifotal “Total Net asscts-by 'Capit:i[

2016 Agsets Liabilities sezment expenditures )
T L o VDU 2.044 138 740,405 1,303,733 129,769
PARAIMAL 1 c5cr- v i st b oo et et e ere s ee s en e s eenes 485.681 232,406 353.275 4,219,
TCOST8 RICA: ervveseceameiberascese st s se s et evarases s s o 121,892 42,247 79,645 1,221
Rest of CLH.. 284.801 155840 128,961 3.579
11T U SOOI 340,095 698.106 (338.011}% -
Total 5 3,376,607 1.869.004 1.507.603 138,788




CEMEX Latam Holdings, 8.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes-tg the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nire-month periods ended September. 30, 2016 and 2015
{Thousands of U.S. dollars}

Balance sheets — continued

. Tatal Total Netiassets by Capital
2015 Assels Liahilities segment expendifures.
COIOMDBIR vt cieereee s ieeia vt ers e v e eras v o e rase e sssmanion e seseemnee o 1,826,232 643,873 1,780,359 156,429
PADAME. ct1eevvicbeiaeresisioerrsirrerivstainsesssbbemraneionses bssnsssasiensinsiertarsiereioes 569.798 240,907 328891 18,639
O RECHe it e e ieeree s et e fuemeiebanesee e senteesereshenieneerameirnens 82,199 36,158 56.041 b 4635
Rest QU CLEL vceiiiee i eeiae s sre b e e e er s s rss e (4 237768 173.360 64.408 11,364
TMIBIS ©ovviscviecr et soen i eesesaes e rnceeseensass s rasarsaes ssfararasinssmssen 1 dvngans 470,933 783,817 (312.884) —
Total.. $ 3,196,930, {880,115 1,316,813 193.917
4)  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization expense for the nine-month periods endéd -September 30, 2016.and 201515 délailed -as follows:
2016 _ 2015 _
Depretiationand dmortization expense of agscts used in the production process... DU TUPVRIP. 44.707 46,251,
Dcprccmtlon and amortization expense of assefs used in administrative and. S(..Hlﬂg actlwtlcs 19,317 18,566
3 64,024 64,817
5)  OTHER EXPENSES, NET
The detail of ather expensés, nél for the nine-month periods ended Septémber 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:
2016 2015
Results from the valuation and sale of assets, salc-of scrap. ‘and other p: oductsand _ 3
Ron-operating expenseés, net.. e e e e b e e igra et een D 253 (9,953
Damages recoveries .. : Ciear b eos s a e ; (43} 373
Séveraiice payments and Uther pcrsonncl costb for rcorgammimn (18[} { 2_..44_8)
Assumed taxes, fines. and other penafties .. . (2.738) (879)
3. (2.707) (12:907)
6) OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES, NET
‘Other linancial expenses detail, net for-the nine-month periods ended September 30; 2016 and 20135 arc as follows:
2016 2015
Interest cost 0nemployee BEMEIILS ..o i it ece e seees b e aps st e s Chs ik st rast s s srsbarios st b 9 {1.920) (2.144)
FINANCTAT ICOIMIEL . i it ian ettt eseressians s rosrs b es e ss e e e g smsesas i kst s sanes e and s femrnsenansaerrie 1:389° 1,444
$ (331) (700}
7y CAsH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidaled cashand cash equivalents as'of Septernber 30, 2016 and Décember 31,2015 dre.as Tollows:
2016, 2015
Cash and bank accounts.. e $ 42.631 47.386
Fixed-income scouritics and othcr cash cqun dlems _ 4.130 0,249
) 446,761 33,635
8)  TRADEACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Conisolidated trade accounts receivable as of Séptember30, 2016 and Décember 31,2013 are detailed as follows:
_ 2016 2015
“Tride aCCOUNS TEEEiVaDIE. .ot baneg e st e $ 121,237 97,263
Allowanges for doubHL BCCOMNLS. . .vvirr it ee et sie s e s resst e nesssien : _ {35.433) {5.697}
3 115.804 91,568




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consalidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nine-month periods.ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of 1.S. dolars)

%) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Balances receivable from and payable to related parties as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are detailed as follows:

Short-term sceoints réceivable 2016. 2015

CEMEX. 8AB. de C.V. s : : . eeetennes A : —_— $ 327 173
CEMEX Central, S.A.de C.V . 213 383
New Sunward Holding BiV. i oo ceecnioeses e veessresssssioseneesnds st esbonsbreniane s ros s sesnens 82 76
CEMEX de PUerio RICO, [NC. 0 e e iiivt e iiste e eees enras e en s faia it baianssceesaanne o s smsane essbsbeesastessenis 71 237
Business Malerial Funding SL.. 13 15
CEMEX Rescarch Group, AGi it e s S 4 1.674
CEMEX Denmatk APS.... o ciovirres seeressoseradaseeas — 627

$ gi¥i 3,222

Short-term accounts payable

New Sunward l[oldmgBV' 144,443 144,027
CEMEX Espafta: 8.A.7 113.349 113.245
CEMEX Holdings Inc. ? 10.499 2,488
CEMEX Céntral; S.A. dc C V b 4.659 340
CEMEX Research Group, AG %o teas e sn bt s s suen et sae s s s et e 2:920 1,132
CEMEX. S.AB. de C.V. 5, 1,547 -
CEMEX Intemaciotal, S A de Cﬁ i3 891

Fijur, 8.A, de V... v esesss st s : 124 174
CEMEX México, SA dc(, V.. 119 217
Pro AMBIEnie, Sl dir GV i e eiits i aeas e 5o setterses et et assatar s e dnansinbone e e eaansanioseaaeaTonn 06, 71

SURBULK SHIPPETNE NV ciicetsiuns i seefeansian s b rmssaessasddes b roses s bbe famemabsartamsaebie e seasanirheseaeniie 21 -
Latinameric(m'Tradinz R P TSRS USRI 24 -
CEMEX Jamaica Limited ... e e riegara s et e pnaere s et dveanarat < arertarecareiean PR rTEracere e 1 raneaperesdegernnrrias 14 13
Beijing. CXP Import:& L*(pun Co Ltd;. 9 -
CEMEX Pert, 8.A.. - 22
CEMEX Triding. Ll C . . —~ 5,687
D05 Lot et oot s b e b8 mbh R £ 41844 B4R 424 4RSS0 438 A p e 4R E e st b e b s 3 3

[

$ 278640 268.512.

Long-term accounts. payable _ _
New SUnWard HOBURE BV . vt iv e et esesesie s s esssbianeeseneesesesivnsesesssuseessinmersoees B 738.722 822,388

$ 1,017,362 1,090.960

1. The balances a§ of ‘September- 30, 2016 -and December 34, 2015 iaclude: a) loan agreement and accrued interest negotiaied by Corporacion Cementera
Latinoamericana §,L.U, of $303,245 in 2016 and' $349.978 in 2015; b) loan agreement and acerued interestnegotiated by the, Parent Company of $36,487 in2016
and $85,0204n 2015, a5 well as.a revolving.créditof $170,648 in 2016 and $85,316 in 2015: ¢) loan agreement and-dccrued interest negotiated: by ‘Cemento-Bayand,
§.A. of $129:962 in 2076.and $128,438 in 2015 and d), loan agrecmenl and accrued: interest ncgolimcd by CEMEX Bogotd Investments B.v. of $220,783 in 2016.
and 3317644 10 2015,

2. Refers o a loan originally nesotiateéd-by CEMEX Colombia with LLME}\ l"sgmna in Qutdber 2010, At s marifity in December 20714, this loan was renegotidled
on markel conditions at nine-month LIBOR rate plus 275 basis points, and its new maturity is on December 28,2015,

3. ‘The balances qutstanding were generated fram iimports of gray cément.
4,. Royalites payable puruani to echnical assistance agreémetils.
5. Royaltics pavablé pursuant 1o {echinical assistance, use of licensgs and brands, software and administrative pirocesses agriements.

6. ‘These balances are gencrated from tgc'hnicai assistance réceived by the Company.

11



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For thé nine-month periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

‘Transactions with related parties — continued

The maturities of non-current accounts payable as of September 30, 2016 are.as follows:

Débtor 207 2018 Tutal
CEMEX B()b()[d Invesiments B.V. {7% annual)i o venecicrronen k3 39,582 98,974 138.556
.Corporagion Cementera Latinoaméricana, S, L. 1k (7% annual) i eei - 273,369 2733069
CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. (7%-a000a1) ..o i cveesrencens . - 198.247 198.247
Cemento Bayano, S.A. (3M LIBOR + 415 BPS) oo ooncorswessromeesrenesrsos - 128,550 128.550
s 39.582 699,140° 738.722

1 The London fnter-Baik (fferéd Rate, ot LIBOR, is the varidble rate used i iintemational markets for debi denominated in dollars. On September 30, 20163 and 6-
morith. LIBOR was 0,8336% and 1 '2397% respectively. T he contraction “bps” means basis points: One hundred bps'cquals. 1%6.

F he C.binpan)ffs-‘main__transact'ion_s entgred into with related partics: for_l_he- nine-month perigds ended Scptember 30, 2016 and 2015 ar¢ shown below;

Purchases of raw materials 2016 215
(_‘l‘\fIEX Iioldmgs Tac... et b eeaeR e Le e 1R ey b tace e e dcme s r et are bt s bt sn et bemarennnteeninss, B 29.902 -
CEMEX Internacional, S A de C V Feeoteakrreerntafan et etaan bt ran rh e e s aehrtsaaanabae s easnenasasers 4 644 314
CEMEX Iladmg uc e A1t S S bbbt g 3.197 50,169
£ 38,050 501483
Adiministrativé snd sale.expenses. 2016 2015.
Neoris de México, S.A. deC.V......o.. g - : PR UTURIR. 12. -
CEMEX €Central, S:A, (@ €.V, ottt sestaessies s sssscaresmssssss pesei e onsens i bunsbossearaiionen, 2 -
14 =
Rovalties and te¢hnical assistanci: 016 2015
CEMEX Resedrch Groip, AG. toiiiiio s oo sveiusseesbessseessesseaessesss s essoronarsne e sssesrestorsssner 8 27.339 27,564
CEMEX Cenitral, $.A. 08 CiV. ittt oo ssraasse i se v sosssss s siae s e sarsss s 17.330- 20,075
§ 50.607 33,000
Firancial expenses 2016 2015
New Sunward HOIHNEZ BV, vt memiasrases it esmsssrgsasbosssasesieonsiisssnsressss opessmssomesng msgsnenrss 9 46,989 52.668
CEMEX ESpaia. S.A. ..ot iceicssansi s s csnmersaissiose ioensdoces 3,050 2,67}
‘CORSITUCHON: FUNAINE COIPOFATION ...oov. i orercrosorctiaens i eracrssios s g resmasfesssessassses s cares o - 95
CEMEX HUNRary KuF. Ti oo csivimsisssrs e b sspessseserssscs s oo ses st - 88
$. 50.039 55.522

1, This conipany, wis merged with CEMEX Espaia-with @n clfective date on'September 8, 2016..

Pursuant to the services and the rights;of use, opération and’ énjoyment . of CEMEX brands, names and intellectual property-assets, under the
agreement of non-exclusive use,. enjoyment and exploitation of license assel, management services. agreement and business support and, licensing
agréemient, CEMEX Latam Holdings has agreed to pay CEMEX (which includes. CEMEX; S.A.B. de C.V..CEMEX Research Group. A G. as well
‘as CEMEX Central. S.A. dc-C.V.), consistent with the market practices and principles of unrelated. parties, a fee: cqul\fdlent 16 5% of consolidated
revenues, The aforementioned fée cannot be increased without the consent ol the independent dircetors of CEMEX Latam Holdings.expressed during
a'meeting ‘of the board:of difectors.

'Durmg the nine-menth periods ended September 30, 2016 and: 2015 the members of” the. Parent Company's Board of Directors, in consideration for
services rendered, secrued compensation of appr0x1malelv $181 and - $224, respectively. There are no advances or ioans granted. by the Company 1o
such dircetors and the Company has.not provided guarantec an any- dllu.lors obligations. Moreover, the Cumpdnv has not-assumed obligations-for
pensions. or insurance for such. directors.

In-addition. for thé nine-month periods ended Septembér 30, 2016 and 2013, the dpgregate compensation accrued by the:Campany’siop management
was approxintely $3,820 and $4,539, respectively. Out of these totald, approxinately- $3.761 i 2016..and . $3.969 in 2015 corréspond to base
remuneratién plus performance bonuses inctuding pensions and other postretirement benefits. [n addition, approrimately $59 in 2016 and $370.in
2013 of the aggregate compensation corrésponded 1o, allocationg o1 sharés under the cxecdiive contpénsation programs in CEMEX s und the Parent
Company s shares:



CEMEX: Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the nine-month periods ended Septemiber 30,2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dotlars)

Transactions with related parties — continued

In the: Compam’ s'cement operatjons. in Panama, which represented approximately 13% ol itg consolidated sales during the nitiemonth jperiod ended
September 30. 2016, the Company carriés out transactions with Industrias Basicas, S.A,. competitor and local producer of coment, in market
conditions. and lor not significant amouits, A subsidiary of CEMEX. S:A.B. de C.V.. indircct parent of the-Parent Company, hds an cquity interest of
25% 10 the commion stock, of Industrias Basicas. S:A..-which is-an entity neither controiled nor conselidated by CEMEX.

1) OTHERACCOUNTSRECEIVABLE.
10A) OTHER CURRENT-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Consolidated ather accounts receivable-as of Séptember 30,2016 and December 31, 2015 are as foHlows:

_ 2016 2015
NON-1rade ACCOUNTS TECRIVADIE 1o vtoere. oot cieserere et seis st rertesstess s ssassesssoe s se e s st s benesrenrienerione 8.704 7271
RESUECIE CHSEL Lovr oo ssss e e e east 8o et e ep e eeeessennen 2,174 4 401
Loans:10 cmp!meos and othcrs - 1,570 1.022
% 12448 12,694

1 Restricted cash refers to-guacanty deposits made by CEMEX Colombia to Liberty Segutos, $.A.
108j OTHERINVESTMENTS AND NON-CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Consolidated balances.of ather assets and fion-current gccounts receivable as of September 30, 2016 and Décember 31. 2015 are detailed as follows:

2016 2015
Loans and notes receivable ¥ ie....eee. T SRS S SO 18749 18,548
Derechos en-fideicomiso: pdra C]Lbdl rollo dc provctms dh viv 1enda 7,436 —
Guaranty deposits and VAT 1eCovErahle *, ... i i e snes et s st bben e eeeseesroeeran 1,842 1,955
Qther n()rl-currcntasscth" 384 363
2 28411 20.868

1 The combined Balanees. of these lines itemis matnly inclodes: a)a fund of CEMEX Panamid to. secure seniority premium pavments as ol Sepl;mbn.r 30, 2016 and
December 31,2015 of §2,344 anid $2.270, fespectively; by Emission Réductions Centificates granted by thie United Nations 10 quatified projects i Costa Rica for
the réduction of CO2 efissions of §1 £96 as'of Spptcmbcr 30,2016 and §1,792 as of December 31, 2015: ¢) advance payments-for the purchase of {ixed assets of
$8.824 as of September 30, 2016 and $8,464-2s of Décember 31, 2015; d) aceounts receivable from the sale.of land of $3.970 a5 of Seplémber 30, 2016 and )
advances 1of housing projects i Cosla Rica of $924 a§ ofSeptcmbcr 30,2016 and §1 408 as of December 3.1, 2015.

2 -Slarting from May 2014, and with the objective of promoting the development of housing projeets, CEMEX Colombia participated.on a joint Trust, together with.a.
promoting partner. The Trusts onily asset is one housing land located. in' the mummp'\hl} of Zipaquird with market value for approximately Col$37,34%
{135$12,968) and its only |Iabllll}’ :a bank loan for pro‘umatcly Col$21 414 (§7.436), loai used to purchasc the said Jand. In the interim, CEMEX.-Colombia, not a
Trusice at the time, serves notice that thic pmjcct is ‘acquired by somi. developer, and in order o increase the viability of the project, gudraniced jointly and as
‘contingent, paymint Tor tlie' debt's interes(s irk retiom for rights over the. Trusts actives, To date, CEMEX Colombia has loaticd the Tiust for approximately
Cal$4.545 millions ($1,578). 1o cover intérests Tor (he safd loarn and kept on'the books as a shorl term account receivable, 1o be recovered when the:project is sold.
In January 2046, the Trust received a binding oflér for the totality 6Fthe project from another-develagcr. and the Project was taken off the market, bt nevertheless.,
during the third quatter of 2016, and arguing diverse factors, said developer decided (o withdrivi, aecepting the penalty imposed by faw. eguivalent for
.apprmmmtch USS347. From the constitution ol the Trust, and up until the 30th of fune 2016, and considering the. temparary nature of CEMEX’S participation and
the interests showh by, developers, CEMEX Colombia considerca tlie guarantée il granted-and its rights in thie Trust as liabilities anid conitingent assets, respectiv icly.
buoth liabitities not recognided ds: accountable accerding to TFRS, Facing the withdrawal of the- hinding offer, up 10 the 30th of September 2016, i had. heen
considered probable that CEMEX Colombia wonld remain for an. indefinite amount of Lime as.a Project developer. and it has been cnn51dcrcd that the
aforemientioned assets ang tonifingent Tiabilities were probable, and have’ boen recognized in the finincial statements of the company, again on-ihte basis ol the
‘applicable IFRS. (Sce note 13). Neverlheless and as per the initial plans CEMEX Colombia actively collaberatcs with (he Trastee on lllc identilication of new-
partners. Currently, 2 nesy binding offer is being wnsldcrcd

3 Refors mainty to VAT reeeivable-in [ Salvador 6£ $1,034 as of September 30, 2016.and $1,315 asof December 31. 2015 as well as legal deposils in Brazil of $788.
as of September 30, 2016 and $640 as of December 31, 20135,

s+ Refer mainly w other investments of, Panama; CGuatemala, Brazl and Nicaragua.of $384 as of Scp_lem'bcr_ 30,2016 and $365 as of December 31,2015,
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11)  INVENTORIES

Consolidated ‘balances of inventorics as of September 30, 2016 and Dcecember 31.-2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Materials and SUPPHES oo e crmrsren e ren s ees e e . 5 22,965 31,994
Finished goods........ 10,134 13289
WOTK-ID=PROCESS ooomeereeesecseeteecnssenersnersenesrrnes o o, 15,037 19,921
RAW TALETIAS ..o vosersnns rere s rmtarsiessarrs s ereee 14,953 18,558
lnventory in teansit et _ - _ _ 8.106 3:290
Other inventories:.. 1.130. 343
Allowance for obwltstencc —_— {1.458) {1.261%
5 70,867 86,134
12)  OTHERCURRENT ASSETS
As of Septerber 30, 2016 and December 31, 2013 consalidated other current assets are detailed as follows
2016 2015
ADVANCE PAYIICIHS *oor.ivvnsenimesey s ettt ansscmssms e vesegad s evas st et s sssse e 11,734 11.938
Assets held for sale %........ 1,829 2,483
$ 13,563 14.42]

13

As of Sepiember 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the ling itern-of advance payments includes $311,649 and $l 1904, respct.twcl\' associated with advances to
suppliers.ofi inventory and indurance premiums.

Assets held for sale-arc stated at their. estimated realizable- valie and include mainly propertics reecived in payment of trade receivables by CEMEX Costa Riea;
Panama-and T\lcaragua

PROPLERTY, MACHINERY ANDEQUIPMENT, NET

As-of Seplember 30, 2016 and Decembier 31, 2013 thi¢ consolidated balanies of property, machinery and equipment. net were as Tollows:

2016
Land and Machinery _
mineral ik Construction
TESETYLS Briildings- cquipment it progress.’ Total
Lostat the end 0F Period.....oiv e et ens it aiaesies B 226,743 204,177 760,847 274,714 1.466.481
Acenmulated depreciation zmd dep elmn i {27.312) {37.916) (154,037 - (219,265}
Net book valtié 8t eid 6T PEHO oo rvewrreee ooereer s e rst et seeessisivees 199,731 166261 606,810 274.714 1247216
2015
Land and :\'Iachi_n_cry
minegeal. and Construetion
reserves Buildings equipment _ in progress ¢ Toial
Cost at.the ¢nd of peried... . % 211,439 194,258 713.789. 147,715 1,267.2010
Acéumulated dcplcudiwn and dc,plctlon {20.212) (31.076) {122,554} — (173.842)
Net baok value at end of périod ... eertesarsbeaemre ety atearpenttrers | ‘191:228 163,183 591,233 147715 1,093,355

In July. 2014, the Cnmpmw began the construction of 4 new cement plant in the municipality of Maceo in thie Antioguia deparment in Colombia-witlvan approximate
capacity of 1.1 million tons, Ihc first phase included the construetion of a cement inill, which is in testing-wiich has begit fested 1o daie with clinker supplies from the
Caracolito: plant i thague; and the cement obtained has been tised in its entirety within the same: céhstruetion of the plant The next phase; which includes the
construction of the kilvand the access road to the plant, is expected o he - comipleted. in stages during the Jast quarter ¢f 2016 and unti! the first half of 2017, i order 1o
be able 10-s1art Commeréial operations in July 2017, -Consideriiig: the succéssful- conclusion ‘of several ongoing processes associated witlh centain: operating permits
{note 223, CEMEX Latam cstimates an investment of approtnm'ﬂuly $340 millipn, of whichi, as of Séptember 30, 2016, approximately: $28{) milfion have been
invested,

In '1dd1t:(m during: 2014, the Gompany bwan thc constretion, of a cément. mill in Nicaragua wilh « potential milling capacity. 6 440,000 tons pt.l' :year upon
conclusion of the project’s v pliases, with a total investnicnt of appro“maluly $55 milkion. “The- first phasi wis cnm.ludcd ‘and began I!]I“m“ operations in February

2013, with an investment of apprm.lmatelx $22'milfion. The second phase is expected w start in 2017 subject to market. condmons
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4} GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
14A) BALANCES

As of September 30. 2016 and December 312015, consolidated goodwill, intangible.assets and deferred -assels.is simmarized as follows:

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Accumilated Net baok
Cost amgrtivation “valué Cost ampriization valug

Intangible assets of indefinité useful life _
Goodwill .. e 1,575,353 -~ 1,575353, 1,575,396 - 1,575,396
Int-mglblc assels nfdcrmtl, uselul 11fc _
Customer relations... 194,386 (81,747 112,639 192,753 {67,392) 125,361
Extraction permits and llccmes . 124,798 (18,323 106,475 100,940 {15.616) 85,324
Tnidustrial propelty and trddt.mdrkb 1.807 {]??(']'3__) 104 1,410 (1.273) 137
Mining projects.....icunn b rt 1,385 33 1.350 705 (28) 677
Other intangibles and defcrred ASSELS. v, 3,796 {(265) 3.531 - - -

§ 1,501,525 {(102,073) 1799452 1.871.204 (84.309) 1,786,895

14B). ANALYSIS OF:GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT

As.of September 30, 2016 and December 31,2015, goodwill balanccs allocated by operating segiment are as follows:

2016 2015

COSHARICA . e vevesrumsnias e srs e seseess s s tsssseess et 005t et eee e s eet e sebarenieens e emreeseresaerermrresporerens 3 438,829 450,048
PRNAMA 1o gress s ereses s seessnss s esress st nses o 344,703 344,703
O O 318,940 303.971
GUATBIMAIA L .., asiris et s e 241,547 237.297
NICBTBUA o1 pease e seens s neressserssars e sogssansess onring sy e ees s serncron 216,246 224,289
EESAIVAAOR _..e.evvere e ress e ressess v s ssons s sss s ors g4 s s e s e anse s nessaneeen . 15.088 15,088

$ 1,575,353 1,575,396

During the last guaiter of 2015, consldn.rmg the econamic’ downturn in Brazil among othér [actors, the Company recognized impairment losses i
such quarter associated with its operating segment in Brazil for a-total 0I'$62,366, out of which, $44.983 was related with the full write-off of
goodwill that had been altocated to the aforementioned opérating ségment, and $17.383 was a reduction of an operating license: The total amount of
the impairmerit loss corresponded to the.excess ofthe net book value of the operating segment over jts value i use, represented by the present valuc
of estimated cash. flows. According (o its policy, the Company will perform its annual impairment analysis on goodwill balances during the fouirth
quarter at the level of the groups of Cash Generating Units ("CGUs™) to which goodwill balances have been allacated. relating to the Company’s.
operations. in each countey. As of September 30, 2016, the Company has hol identified additional impairment indicators thiat would sugsest the need
to-anticipale the impairment tests in any LOUI'IT.I'} ‘before the fourlh quarter; however, the Compény closely moniters the situation. in Brazil for the.
remairing book value of the operating license mentioned above.

15)  SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

As of Septemiber 30, 2016 and December 31.°2073, consolidatéd debt-by type of Tinancial instrumenis is summarized as follows:

2016. 2015
Leasing Bolivar, S;A. DTF_.ajnticipaled giarteily plus 550 bps 3., 1,852 2,422
Leasing de Occidente, S.A., DTF-anticipated quarterly plus 400.bps 2 1,251 1,636.
Leasing Baneclombia. 8.A., DTF anticipated qudﬂcrl) plus 390 bps 1GR3 2,204
Helm Leasing, S.A., PIF dnthlp'ltLd quarterly plus 385 bps 2 1.045 ‘1,367
Leasing Bogota, S, A DTF anticipated qudrtcrly p]u% 463 bps 828 1,082
Ordinary bonds in th Colombian mar ket . y - 30175
Promissory note loreign currency: varmblc ratt, 8,’553 4227
Promissory noteé to Banco de Bogota *. ; 4,150 -
Trust'guarantee for the dévelopment ofhou'img pr0|ect - 7.436 —
Totdl... . ¥ 26.800 16,113
Iongmmdebz 1.864 846"
SROTEAETITE AEb oot Lt i e e e cesaerens $ 24936 §,067




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S:A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated '.Coridensed Financial Statemeénts
For the nine-month periods ended September 30,2016 and 215
{Thousands-of U.S. dollars)

Short-term and long-term debi— continued

The maturities.of CEMEX Latam’s consolidated long-term debt as-of September 30, 2016, were 45 follows:
' Matirities
1] S DRRVURIORN e e e e, e e e Rt e st e 1.864
s 1.864

1 The fixed-lerm-deposit, rate {Tdsa de Depdsito & Términe Fijo or DTF} is the. avérage inlerest raje paid by financial institutions in Colombia on fixed-lerm-
certilicates. As of Seéptember30, 2016 the quarterly DTT rate was 7.13%,

2 . Refers wr {.apltdi legses with commercial Anange cofmpaniés denomiiiated in Colombian pesps, which were hegotiated in 2012 with a maturity of sixly menths. For
the first nine months of 2016 and 2015, CEMEX Colombia incurred Tnlerest -on. these. capital 1éases for an amount of $646 and $771, respectiv ely The assets.
-acquired through these capital. lesises have.been placed as puarantee for stch financial obligations.

3 OnJuly 8,-2013, CEMEX Colombia® ;ssued ordinary bonds maturing in 10 vears with intercst rae of 8.30% i he Amount of ten. bl!lmn Columbian pesos. l'Ius
issuiange. wis approved on April 21, 2013 by the Sharcholders Mcttln" of CEMEX Colombia thatapproyed the issuance and the public offerinig of ordinary bonds
~for ap to: thiry billion Colombian pesos. in order to Fifill with CEMEX Colombia's corporaie dulics -and 1o maintain its status as issucr of seeurities - the.
Colombian market, The isstiance was regulated by the Board of Directors of CEMEX Colombia on April 29, 2015, On July 8, 2013, CEMEX Colémbia {ssuéd on
the secondary market; (ermm},r bands with-a {0-year maturlt} rate of 8.30% for the sum of ten thousand million Colombian pesos.in order lo.comply with the dutics
«of the company and maintain 5 status- as a securities issuer in the Colombian market. Based.on the established in the clavse 4,10 of the prospectus for the issuanée.
of sucli commen honds, sinee during the-annual period betwéen July 9, 2015 and iy R. 2076 the trading vaTume: ol the sectiritics in the sccondary market was léss:
than €6l 35,000 miltion, on July 12,2016, CEMEX Colombia made an offer to purchase the securities addressed to-all the bolders at a price equivalent to 100% of
“the” principal -amounl outstanding plus interest eansed and not paid. The- previous offer was mccptcd by all holdets of the sécuritfes on July 3. 2016,
Notwiths{anding (he acquisition Df the securitics by CEMEX Colombia, the-securities rémain. in foree-in the cm"lnal term as established in the second paragraph of
the arlicle 2-of the Law 964-of 2005,

1 Refers to notes maturing. in.one year payable by C EM_EX Calombia l(_).';.’LVVi]i_as bank.of $8,553 a3 of September 30, 2018 bearing LT rate plus 4.5%, and $4.227
-as of Deceimber 31, 2013 bearing DTF rate.plis 3.0%.
5 Refers to-prontissiry ridiés maturing in one year payable by CEMEX Colombia to Banco de Boguté’: of $4.150 as of Seplember 30,2016

6 Represents the maximum guantification of the guarantee granted by CEMEX: Calombia on e amount exercised- throut*h a promissory note received by the Trust
for the developrient of housinig projects as described i ot [0B. CEMEX Colombia also réceived us guaranict the assets property of the frust whose value
significantly covers the amount of the debt. Said promissory note will.be renewed until maturity by the trust every 180 days untit finding the developer whe buys
‘the projeet, of unti) itis decided to-extifiguish the trust, in which case thie debt would he assumed did inTetum we received the assel, The loan ias-an interest rate at
3 DTF plus 3.5%.

16)  "OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of September 30. 2016-and December 31, 2015 consolidated other current accounts payvable and accrued expenses were defailed as [ollows:

. 2016, 2015
ACCIUEA @XPEISES -ovvvrevtsenresevs b beesse s resesesesere o begesresess s st et meracsc e rerissoess | D 29.482 17,569
Others provisiens' and Elabllrtles 17,902 15,520
Advam.eb from customers . 17,525 18, 166
Provisions for legal claims uﬂd othm commltmcnts ]'2_._6'_88 16,410
I’rowsmn lor emplo\te benefils .. " nertesperaririns demeeeiyere 7.238 8,038,
$ .86,820 76,758

Current provisions prlmarl]y consist of employee benefits accrued at the balance sheet date. insurance and accruals reldted 16 legal atid envircamental
‘assessments. expected to be settled in the shori-term. These amounts arc revolving in nature and are t.\pem.d to bc scttled and replaced by simijar
amourits within the next 12 months..

As of Scptenber 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consolidated other non-current Habilities were ag follows:

2016 WIS
Provision for asset retirement obligations * . : BTSRRI 4,051 4419
Others provisions, and Habilities ... . : oo s s 3:014 .3,6_39
S 8.540 8,330

t Asset retirement obligations includg futare estimated costs for demolition, dismantling and cleaning of produition siles at the.end of their operafion, which are
initially recognized against the related assets and are depreciated over-their estiinated: useiul life.
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17} INCOME TAXES
174) INCOME TAXES FOR THE PERIOD.

The recognition of income taxes for interim periods is based on e best estimate of the: cifective income tax rate expected for the full year, which is
applied {e the income before income taxes. Tor the nine-month pefiods eénded Seplember 30, 2016 and 70] 5, income tax expense recognized in th__e
-consolidated condensed income statemients wiis as follows;-

2016, 2015.

‘CULTEIEANCOMIG LANES o ere vt ere o srasgoseessrasesrmssresessgesseseassonsmen st easmennsresossss ns sosnesbensesryenssoesivseremsimmsivs 9 91,736 76,880
T3CEEITEA INGOME TAXES wooiceur ot iecrmsesrcasaze corsee e smos s cessses s spees e ass e sres £ er s sms R g b4 ast 4ot b e st bt r et e ben 311 £2,060)

% 92.047 74,826
-Oni af which:
'Colombi'a""_.,-,..-......_...,..-. : e $ 48.777 43411
Costa Rica.... 9.134 9,500
Panaina... - 7.949 6,613
Rest.of Ll H and olhcrs . 26,187 14902

5 92.047 74,826

1 Béginning January 1, 2045, a tax on wealth became effective in Colombia, which i is calculated mnstdcrln“ (he net equity-for tax purposes:cutstanding as of January
1, 2015. The. aforememmned iax wilt be effective:in 2015, 2016.and 2017, The effect dhiring the nine-inonth petiod citded September 30, 2016 was appr()\lmaiel»
$3,535 and is included within income taxes.

2 Inaddition, as part of tax modiiicitions éffective January 1. 2013, a surcharge on the income tax rate {.’mpues."o sobre fo Renta para la Lqrfm’ad or "CREE’ "y was
mlplcmcnlcd whith will be cffective from 2015102018 and will generate an ingrease in'the ingome tax rate -in-Colombia to-the follgwing lax rates; 39% in. 2015,
40% in 2016,42% in 2017 and 43% in 2018. AL Décember 31, 2014, the aggregate fale ofincome 1ax in Chlombia was 34%.

3 In¢ludes the Company's operationg in Nicaragua, Guatemala, Bl Salvador. and Brazil as well as the éffects on income taxes of the Parent Company. other:sub-
holding companies. and other consolidation adjustments,

17B) UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AND SIGNIFICANT TAX PROCEEDINGS.

CEMEX Latam is involved in severdl ongoing: tax proccedings which have nol required the recognition of accruals since the Company does not
consider probiable adyerse considering the evideénce at-iis disposal, Nonctheless, the Company cannot assure 1o obtain a favorable resolution. As of
Seplcrnbel 30, 2016, a summary of relevant facts of the ‘most signillcant proceedings inprogress, or which wereresolved during therepoited perfods,
wereas follows:.

Colombia

» On Apiil 1. 2011. the Colomibian Tax Authorily {Direccion de Impuestos ?\'acmna:‘es or the “DIAN™). notified CEMEX Colombia of a’ %peual-
‘proceeding rejecting certain deductions taken by CEMEX Colombia in ils 2009 tax return, The DIAN assessed an ingrease in the income tax
payable by CEMEX Colombia Tor-an amount i Colombian pesos equl\«alcm to approximately $31 miillion and imposed-a penalty fn’ Colombian
pesos for an amount eguivalent to approximatcly $50 million. both-considering the exchange tate as of September 30,. 2016, The DIAN argues
that certain expenses are not deductible for fiscal purposes because they are not linked to-direct revenues recorded in. the samc fiscal year, without
considering that future revenué will be taxed ander the income tax faw iit Colombia. CEMEX Colombia responded to the special proceeding on
June 25, 201 1. On December 13,.2011. the DIAN issued its final resolution, which confirmed the information in the special procéeding, CEMEX
Colombia appealed such resolution on February 15,2042, On Jdnuar} 17, 2013, the DIAN confirmed CEMEX Colombia its final resolition. On
May 10; 2013. CEMEX Colombiz appcaled the finial ‘resolution before the Administrative: Tribunal of Cundinamarca, which was admitted on
June 21, 2013. On July 14, 2014, CEMEX Colonibia was notified -about afi afverse resolition to its appeal, which confirms the efficial
liquidation notified by the DIAN On July 22, 2014, CEMEX Colombia filed an appeal against this resolution before the Colombian Staie
Coungil (Consejo. de Estado). On September 17. 2015, CEMEX Colombia presented arguments in sccond instance under this proceeding.
Currently, the process is waiting for judgment.since Octaber 7. 2015, At (his stage of the procecding. ‘as of September 30. 2016, CEMEX Latam:
does not consider prohable an adverse resolution in- this proceeding. however is difficult to assess with cértainty the. likelihood of un advirse
result. but if adversely resolved. this proceeding could have a material adverse impact on CEMEX Latam’s resulis of operations, lquidity or
financial position, ' ' '
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Ungirtain tax pasttions and significant tax proceedings - continued

Onl September 13, 2012, the DIAN notified CEMEX Colombia an ordiniary.request for the review of its income tax return {or the fiscal year
2011, in conntction with tlic amortization of goodwill of Lomas del Tempisque $.R.L., which was consideréd tax.déductible in.sueh {ax return:

On Octaber 5, 2012. CEMEX. Colombia rejected the DIAN'S arguments and requestéd that the case would be dismissed: On Angust 9, 2013,

CEMIEX Colombia received a verification notice from the DIAN, obtaining the. facuity to review the aforementioned income tax return, which is
curreitly being audited. Additionalty, on June 28, 2013, CEMEX Colombia requested: an amicridment project in order o increase the amount of
tax receivable, which was accepted on September-6, 2013, At this stage of the proceeding, as of. September 30; 2016, CEMEX Latam does-not
consider prohable an adverse resotution n this procccdmg, however is difficult 1o assess with, cerlainty the likelinood of an adverse result, but if
adversely résoived. ihis proceeding could have 4 material adverse impact on CEMEX Latam's resclts of eperations, liquidity or lmanual
position.

The municipality of San Luis Tolima:(the “Municipality™) has issied requirements to. CEMEX Colombia related with the payment of the industry
and commerce tax (impiuesto de industria y. comeiciv) in such municipality for the fiscal years from 1999 to 2013, The Municipality. argues thal
the lax is gencrated as a result of CEMEX Colombia’s industrial activitics in such jurisdiction, CEMEX Colombia considers that its. activity in.
this municipality is strictly mining and tliercfore pays roy: alties for mineral extraction in th]qjumdmtlon based on the applicable law, which bans
municipalities from collecting the induslry and commerce tax, when ihe amount payable of royaities is équal or exceeds to the amount of such
tx. CEMEX Colombia has duly submitted. legal resources appealing théseé requirements, The combined amount of the proceedings in- Lolombian
pesos s equivalent-to appm\lmalc]v £23 mitllion, considering the Lxchdngc rate as of Scptcmbcr 30, 0]6 of which, approximately $9 million
repiesent” purpm ted tax and $14 miliion corrésponds to peraliics for inaccuracy. On July 18 2013. the fiscal process for Lhe year 1999, issued a
final resolution in faver of CEMEX Colembia for-the €olombian State Council. theréfore this process finishied. The fiscal process for the vears
2000 to 2005 has been pending _}udoment in the State Council sincg; March 25, 2015, The {istal process for the years 2006.to 2007 has been
pcndmg;udgmmt in the Stafe Couricil since May 23, 2013, The fiscal process for the year 2008 received judgment in favor of the company in
first instance in the Adniinistrative Court or Dt,cunber 10, 2015. The municipalily of San Luis filed an appeal 1o the: Stafe Council which was
grantcd on Aprit 25, 2076, The [iscal process for 2009 and 2010 is pending judgment in the Slate Council since June 3, 201 5.

On Du.n.mbt.r 10. 2014, the Municipality issucd an official settferhent request with respeet to the fiscal year 2011, for amounts in Colombian
pesos equivalent for this year to approximately. $1 million of _purported lax and approximitely $1 million of penaltics. both considéring {lic
¢xchange rate as of September 30, 2016. On January 6. 20135, CEMEX Colombia filed an appeal to the official setllement. The Municipality
should have responded. to the appeal lodged no Tater than January-6, 2016. Considering: that the Company did not received any response, on
January 26. 2016, CEMEX Colombia reported to the Muricipality tli¢- recognition’ of the posilive adininistrative &ilence and requested a copy of
the file; which was-submittéd and whereas there is evidence that there was not. any. nolificatjon by the Municipality to CEMEX Colombia or il§
legal represeitative in connection with the resolution of the' appeal for réconsideration. (On ‘the ocecasion of the above, CEMEX proceceded to
formalize 1hrough the:public deed the posilive administrative. silence, which was filed before the municipality of San Liis {Tolirba) on July 1,
2016, On: Seplember 16, 2016, the, Mummpahty held a audience of reconstruction of the file for both 2007 and 2012, mamfcqtmg thai the FI:,s
were. incomplete and was necessary (o accormplish this. dlligcncc Therefore, CEMEX Colombia currently expects the Minicipalily 1o decide on
CEMEX Colombia’s. réquest of recognition:of the posmve administrative silence, Atthis stage, CEMEX Colombia considers that cash outflows
in relation 1o this litigation are not probable,

On March 25, 2015, the Municipality issued 2 special requitément related to fiscal year2012, considering the sameé arguments mentioned.in the
proceedings of pl’u\’lOLlS years deseribed above.. The amount of purported tax in Colombian. pesos for this year is equivalent to 52 million dnd a
penalty for inaccuracy in Colombian pesos equivalent fo approximately $2: million conmdumg the exchange rate as of Scptcmbt.r 30, 2016,
CEMEX responded to the fequest within the legal deadline on May 22, 2015 The Municipality should have issued the official liquidation no
later than January 4, 2016, Cons;dermg similaity that CEMEX Col{&mhn did not received any nptification of the - official liqiidation review,
during January 2016, CEMEX Colombia requested..a_copy of the file, was submitied and whereas there is evidence that there was not gny
notification by the Municipality to CEMEX Colombia or its legal representative it connection with the official liguidation. Fhercfore CFMLX
Colombia currently expects the Municipality to decide on the matter.

In addition, on March 23, 2016, CEMEX Colombia receivéd a special request Tor fiscal year 2013 by means of which the Mumcapallly requires
an incredse in (e mdustrv ahd commerce tax for an amount in Colombian pesos équivalent 1o approumatcf\; 52 millien arid a penalty for
inaccuracy for an amount #iv Colombian- -pesos equivalent Lo approximiately $4 million, both considering the exchangu rate as of September 30,
2016, CEMEX ‘Colombia résponded this special requirement on April 26, 2016.

On June 13, 2016, CEMEX Colombia received 4 slatemeat: of objections by the Municipality for not providing information, which proposes a

penalty lor an dniount in Colombian pésos equwalent 1o approximately $0.25 million, CEMEX Colombia had one month to provide disclaimers
angd/or provide eviderice ir this process. cansequently, on Tuly 1: 2016, CEMEX ‘Colonibia preserited ils résponsc under this proceeding.
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Encertain tax positions and. s.igniﬁ(':mt_ tax procetdings — continued
C'Dsta. Rica’

= In Jaguary 2011, the Costa Rican-Tax I)Lpartmenl (D:recuon General de Tr ;bm‘auon or the "Tax Department"yihformed the Biginning of audits
for the 2008 fiscal year in.CEMEX (Costa Rica), §.A. ("CEMEX Costa Rica"), which-inciuded Income tax, payroll withholding1ax and sales 1ax.
On August 9, 2013, the Tax Department, issued a provisional regularization proposal for an amourit in Costa Rican colones equivalent lo
‘approximately S8 million, considering the exchange rate as-of September 30,-2016; which includes tax, interest and penaltics. On August 23,
2013, CEMEX Costa ica filed a legal resource against (he provisional regularization pmposal arguing that the action hias been time barred and
rL_|cctmg the. propesed adjustments considering that CEMEX Costa Rica ‘has acted in -accordance. with the applicable- tax regulations. On
Sepilember 30, 2013, TEMEX Costa Ricd was notified of a settlcment proéedire by means of which the T'ax Diepartment dismissed the arguments
presented by CEMEX Costa Rica and ratified the resolution ol the provisional regularization proposal On Navember 7, 2013, CEMEX Costa
Ricafiled a legal resousce to revoke the seftierent: prucedure- which should have been resolved by the Tax- Department within a 3 month period,
which ihg Tax Department could exiend without consequenée, except for the: suspension of the calculation of interest, On Séptember 24, 2014,
the Tax Dcpdrtmcnt notificd CEMEX Costa Rica of the annulment of the settlement procedure and the résolutions previcusly issued considering
a uiiconstitutionality rfesource challenge acucptcd by the Constitutional Court of Costa Rica (the "Constitutional Court") against the-article of the
tax regwlation which served as-the basis for issuing the settlement procedure, Wonetheless.. -simultancously. the Tix Department notificd CEMEX
Costa Ricu-a new seltlerient procedure and sanctioning resolutians in ‘accordance with the new legal requiréments: of the new code of rales and’
tax procedures. Following the notification of the new settlement- precedure, the Constitutional Courl clgrified that the Tax Department stiould not
issue riew settlentent procedures antil the Constitutional Court would issue a rulcon the conslrtutlonallty of the article of the tax regulation. On
October 10, 2014, the Tax Department notificd CEMEX: Costa Rica the cancéllation of the new {and: last) seitlement procedure and the
wncspondmg sanctioning resolutions. arguing that the Constitutional Court admiiled an um.onst}mtlona]lly action. brough{ by & third party
-apainst the payment obligation or gharanty-in a tax proceeding, prior 10 its defénse, which is provided for in the new-tax regulation; suspending .
its application until the Constitutional Court rtles on the merits of this action, In view of the above, the Tax Depariment canniot issue new
seftlement procedures or sanctioning resolutfons until the Constitutional Court resojves the aforementioned: unéastitutionality action. “Therefore,
the tax proceeding initiated against CEMEX Costa Rica was. annulled and (he issuance of thig selilernent procedure against CEMEX Costa Rica
was suspended. On August 31, 2016, the Constitutioital Court, by vole No 2016-12496. declared unconstitutional the contested rules, eliminating’
-Ibie abligation to' make:the advance payment or the guarantee,of the-determined taxes prior to the. defense. The Constitutionat Court determined
that the audits should be finalized under the current Icgmlatmn before Law No. 9069; known as transter of chavges. To date, yet 16-be issued the
full ekt of the-judgment, and the ‘Tax Administration has nol informed about how it will implement what is indicated in the judgment. As of
Septeraber 30,2016, there aren’t oificio liquidations in relation to the car ry out inspection forthe 2008 1ax period against CEMEX Costa Rica.

18) STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
18A) COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

As of September 30,2016, and December 31. 2015, the lite ttem comnion stock. and additional pafd-in capital wis detailed ds follows:

2016 2015
Treasury Freasury
Authiorized shares: Total Authorized shares Total
ACOMMOR SUOCK .ot seseteceeaireracecarsiees e serirves B 718.124 - 718.124 718,124 - 718.124
Additional pﬁld ih Ldplla} 894 701 {147,833} T46,866 804,701 (147,839 746,862
$  1.612,825 (147.833)  1.464,990 1,612,825 (147.839) 1,464,984

During the nine month periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2044 the' Parent Company. performed physical deliveries of shares 1o the exceoutives
sabjeci to the benefits of the long-term stock-based compensation plan {(note 18D), which increased additional pald n-capital in_the amount of $4-and .
"$242, respectively. as result ol the decrease in m.awly shares, which were délivercd to these éxecutives.

Asof September 30. 2016 and- December 31, 2013, the Parent Company’s subscribed and paid shares by owner were distributed as follows:

Shares 2016 2015
Owned by CEMEX ESPABA ...cc.corsornivsver o stoscsisiocssiersiocs recrsaiin soesereessesrerssrsssn s resssssrisssscsssonncnnonnse 407,890,342 407,890,342
OWNEA DY thitA-PATLY HIVESIOIS.cot1.or e rseoichcooeeesi bbb mnmss g e o oo senssesns s 148,486.588 148,485,934
Total subscribed and paid Shares ...........ccovvioeivinnns e 356,376,930 556,376,276

As of September. 30. 2016, and December 31, 2015, the Parent Company’s common Stock was'represented by 378,278,342 ordinary-shares with a
nominal vafue of 1 euro pershare, Thie niumber of subscribed and paid shares of CEMEX Latam Holdings presented in"the table ahove excludes
21,901,412 and 21.902,066 shares held in the Company’s treasury (treasury. sharcs), respectively.

On Séptember 30, 2016, CEMEX Espafia owns approximately 73.31%. of the common shares of the Parent Company, excluding shares héld in
freasury.
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18B) OTHER EQUITY. RESERVES

Asof September 30, 2016 and December 31, 201 3. the balances of other equity reserves are sunimarized as.follows:

2016 2015
Reorganization of entities under commen control and olher.effects b ...orriccinsimmssniisninsse S (300.422) {300.422)
Translation effects of lbrugn subsidiaries * ..o et ety eenses bR e R R RS (538,217} (583,788)
Share-based PAYMENS * .. ccicmirsvevssssasiossisfoesbomsoset areie e s fndsesaebie et oo 9.026 7.823
$ (829,613) (876.387)

2 '_[:ffects resuiling mdmly from the difference between the amount of compensation detérmined in the- reorganization of entiiies efiectiveas of July
I, 2012, by means of which the Parent Cotmpany acquired its consolidated subsidiaries, and the value .of the net assets acquired of such
subsidiaries, net ofdther purchase ddjustmeénts.

2 Represents the balance of thie cumulative effects Jor the translation of forcign subsidjaries and which are included for cach:period in-the slatemenis of
comprehensive:

3 As of Seplember 30,2016 and Decembet 31, 2013, the line: item oiher equity rescrves includes effects associated \wth the executive
.compensation programs. based on CEMEX’S and th¢ Parent Company’s shares (note . 18P), and.which costs-are recogm/ed in {he results of edach
subsidiary. during the vesting: period against other equity: reserves, Upon. physical delivery of tic Parent Company’s shares, the-amounts acerued
in other equity reserves-are reclassified to additional paid-in capltal

18C)y RETAINED EARNINGS

In:accordange with the provisions of' the Corporations Law in $pain,-the Parent. Coimpany rrust allocate. 10% of its. annual profit, determined on a
stand-alone hasis, o a legal resérve until such reserve reaches:at least an ampunt equivalent to-20% of the Parent Company’s common stoek. As of
September 3(), 2016. the legal reserve ol the Parent Company amounted to $13,045

18D) EXECUTIVE STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Based on IFRS'2, Siock-baseéd compensation, the instruments granted to executives of CEMEX Latam are defined as. cquily ln'itrumcnts -considering
that the scrvices received from emp]cyecs are settled by delivering shares. The cost ofthese equity instrivnéns represents their estimiated fair value at
the granl date of cach plan and is recognized in the income statement during the perjods iri which the exceutives rendet services and vest thie exercise
rights:

On January 16, 2013, the Parent Company’s Board of Brirectors. corisidering the favorable report of its Nominations. and Remuneration Committee,
approved. effective January 1,.2013, & long-term incentives plan for Sertain executives of CEMEX Latam, wnalslmg of an ammual compensation plan
based on the delivery of shares of the Parent Company. ]"hc cost associated with this fong-term incentives plan is recognized in the operating results:
of tliz companies of CEMEX Latam in which thé eXecttives subje(.t 10 the benefits of the plan render theii services: The underlying shares in the
aforementioned. long-term incentives-plan. which are held in the Companys treasuty, are delivered fully vested during o A-year period under each
annual program.

Ire addition. during the years preceding the implemenation of the: incentives plan’ prevmusiv mentioned, some exectives of the Company-
participated in CEMEX's stock-based long-term incentives proaram by méans of which, new CEMEX's Ordinary Participation: Certificales
("CPOs") are issued. whiich ar¢ vested and delivered during o' services peried of four yedrs under edch annual programs: Effective January 1, 2013, all.
etigible executives from CEMEX Latam operalions siopped receiving (‘L‘\APX S.AB. de C:V CPOs.

For the hinesmonth periods ended Sepiember 30, 2016 and 2015, compensation expense related 1o the long-term’ incentive plans based on shares of
CEMEX and-thé Parent Company ‘deseribied abovn which was recognized in the results of operations each sithsidiaries agdinst other equity réservics
amounted 1o §1.207 and $1,513, respoctively.

18E) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Nen-controiling interest represents the share of non- ccntm]lmg stockholders:in the resultsiand equity of conselidated entities. As of Scptemiber 30,
2016 and December 31, 2015, non-controlling interest in ‘eguity amounted Lo approximately $3,938 and $5.329. respectiv clv

19) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Based on TAS.33, Earnings per share (“1AS 337, basic carnings.{loss) per share shall be caleulated by dlwdlng profit-or loss attributable to.orditiary:
equity holders of thé parent entity (the numierator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding {the denominater) during the period. Shares.
that would be issued depending only-on the passage of time shivuld be included | in the determination of the basic welghted average number of shires
outstanding. Diluted carnings (loss) per share should reflect in both, ‘the numerator and denominator, the assumption that convertible instruments are
coverted. that options or warrants arc exercised, or that (ermar) shares are issued upon the satisfaction of specified conditions; to the extent that
such ‘assumption would lead to'a reduction in basic carnings per share o afi increase in basic logs per shave; otherwise, the effects: of potential shates
are not-considered because they generate anti-dilution.
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Earnings pier share —continued

‘The amounts considered for calculations of garnings per share (“1PS™) for the ninc-mionth periods ended September 30, 2016 and 2015 are as

~1

follows:
Denominator (thoasands of shares). 2016 2013

Weighted average aumber of shares outstanting —Basie EPS ..o oo iiresieeeesionteieeeseevereaienens 356,376 356,161

Effect of dilutive instrumenis ~ stock-bascd compensation..........o. 463 647
Weightéd average number-of shires outstanding ~ Diluted BPS ........., 356,839 556.808.

Nunieratar _
Consolidated net MEOME ..o ivrcisturereiniorriesens BTN 143,919 117,539
Less: non-corilrolling iRterest G IMBOIMIE ..o it Siorefer saeiestesseetsesees eesianartesens sees seneesserase oo {(318) {415)
Controlling interest fiet income $ 143,401 117,124
Ceontralling Interest Basic Earnings -p_cr"Sflare (_$-p_:_:r SNATE} .cov v vcinersris e e rsas s e s ra st anerese D 0.26 0.21
Controlling Interest Diluted Eamnings pet Share {§ pershare) i viniisienecns. 3 0.26. 0.21
20)  COMMITMENTS
204) CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS.
As of September 30; 2016 and December 31, 2015, the.Company iad the following contractual obligations:
(Fhousands of dolars) September 30, 2016 2015
Less than More-than 5 _
Pebts 1 year 1-3yenrs: ~ -3-5 years years Tatal. “Total

Long-term debtawith related partios ' it 278,640 738,722 - - L017.362 1,090,900
Interest payments on debl 2. ... i e et eeesssienns 56,658 38,989 - - 95,647 146,020,
Operating leases * : o 1,853 3484 3.464 10.286. 19.087 17.697
Capita! lcast obligations * 17,500 1.864 - - 19,364 16,113
Pension plaris‘and. othér benefits - 3.399 6,784 6,697 16,007 _ 32,887 32,887
Raw material. fuel and energy putchase b 44,597 127,036 87.39%6 23,559 282_.-7'8_8- 253.080
Investments.in property, plant and equipment “oiovvinn o, 25833 - - - 25,833, 60,751

Tolal contractual OBEZAHONS ...cieoveeeere e seinenss e e areeerer 8 428.480. 916,879 97:757 49852 1492968 1617448

‘This line ileiv refers 1o Gic Company’s Habilities wilh related parties described n note 9,

Inclidés Tuture interest payments under debt owed to llurd-party ereilitors, capilal.leases and débt owed 10 related pamc‘: using the interest rales oulsianding on the
contracts as of September 30. 2016

The amounts of payments urider operating leases liave been’ detérinined on (he:basis of nonlinal cash flows. This line itern mainly refers to the ledse contract
initiated in January 2001 with the Goverament of the RLpubllL of Nicaragua for s term of 25 years, which includes (he operalive and administrative assets,
trademark rights, quarry extractioni rights anid ofhet: nssets of Compaiiia Nacienal Productora de:Comiento, S,A, for$1,679 to less than.one year, $3.359 from ong
Lo thiee years, $3.359 fronT (hiree 1o T i years and $10.076 o more than five years, ln addition. includes ()peratmﬂ ledses negotiated by the Parent Company in
2012 with CEMEX Espadia and CEMEX Research Gmup A with ierms of § years for ils corporate offfcesin Spmn and the r¢search and development officés i
“Switzérkind for $174 to léss than pie vear, $125 from oni¢ fo thice years, S103 rom Uhree to-five years dand $210 to mote than five years.

Refers (o capital leddes ol niachinery and eduipment negotiated by CEMEX Colombia in 2012 wilh-an, original matority of 60 months:;

Represeints the estimated annual payments undée defined benefit plans over the next 10 years.

Includes commitments oi' the. Company for the purchase of raw material, fuel and energy mainiy'.ﬁum_Culon_lbi_a,__P'anama and Nicaragua.

Iacludes purchase of productive assets mainly for Maceo plant in Colombia,

Tn addition to-the confractual obI_igm'iu_n_S._d(;:s'(:r'i'be(._i in.the preceding table, As of Septembier 30, 2016, arc ds: follows:

-

‘On December 22,2014, CEMEX Colombia signed an agreement with ¥ LSmidth, Inc., a global provider of equipment for the mining and. cement
industries, for the engihecring of cquipment, acquisition arid supply of equipment for the new cement plant under construction in the municipality
of Maceo {note 13). maturing in September 2016, for an -amoutnt of approximately $42 million The abject of fhe contract has been campliéd and
is inthe liquidation phase ofthe services provided.

On June 25, 2014, CEMEX Colombia and Wiitsila Colombia S.A. signed'a sérvices agreement for the operation and maimenance of the natural
-gas electrical-energy generating plant that proxfldcs encrgy under the modality of seli-generation for the Caracolite plant. for a‘term of five years

fromthe signing of the.contract, for an. amount of appm\lmatcly $9 million.
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Contract_u:gl obligations —continued

On Marchi 28, 2014, CEMEX Colombia sighed an agreement with ExxonMoebil Colombia S.A. for the supply-ola variety of fuels; for a‘térm of
three years from the signing of the contraet, for an amount of approximately $27 miilion,.

On November 20, 2013, according (0 Memorandum Seripture 11, CEMEX Nicardgua, SA signed a contract with the Naiional Cement Production
Company which will be effective from February 3, 2015 untif 2026; and commits CEMIEX Nicaragua, S.A. (o pay a fee of $0,90 per meiric-ton
produced owtside the San Rafael del Sur plant up. to a production of 220 thousand metric tofs per-year, as ccononiic compensation for. raw
matefial consumption. Anfual payments are-estimiated in $198:and for the next five years in. $990.

On November 1, 2013, CEMEX Colombia accepted:an offer from Arenas v Gravas La Fontana 1, lmxtadd of the same date, by means of which
Arenas ¥ Gravas La Fontana Limitada will supply sand and/or gravel to. CEMEX Colombia for a {erm of five years. Although the final
caleulition” of the contract value will be detéiminged ‘considering the unitary prices and-the-pooeds actually supplied. the annual amount is:of
apprommalely $3 mitllion. Recently, this supplier has been.in Tailing of Agreed. deliveries of materials, so CEMEX Colombia has analyzed
different alternatives with the. snpplier-that allow it to recover the advances granted for an approximate ampunt of $ 0.4 rmllmn witliout this:
having materialized on the 30th-of Septcmber 2016.

On.July 12, 2013, CEMEX Colombia entered into an ‘agreement with B&F Constructores, 8,A.8. by means of which B&F Constructores, S.A.S.
will supply sand and/or. gravel 16 CEMEX Colombia: The dgreement has:a-term.of five. yoars. Allhoubh the final Ldlwlatlon of the coniract’s
value will bé-deiermined considering the pnitary prices and the raw miterials effectively qupplled 16 the Company, the annual -estimated amount
is of approximately $2 million.

On May 23. 2013, CEMEX Colombia au::.ptt.d the offer of Mincivil, $;A., daled on May 22, 2013, by méans of which Mincivil, S.A. will
providi services forthe. development and ‘mining expléitation of the Suspiro quarty owned by CEMEX Colombia, located in the municipality of
los Patios {North of Santander - Colombia); under the supervision and immediate technical ditection and approval of CEMEX Colombia. Th
contract has a ‘term of five years withoul aulomatic extension. Aliliough thie final calculiion ol the contract value will be determined considering
the unildry prices and the Services. effectively received, the annual estimated amourit i5-0f approxamatt.i\r $9 million,

On January 17. 7008 Cemento Bayano, S, A and Generacidn Eléctiica, S.A, Compariy {now EN EL FORTUNA, 5. A} sigried dn agreement for
electric energy supply for the cement utility.in Panama. The energy supply injtiated on Jannary 1, 2010 and is set to terminate on Pecember 31,
2019. Cemento Bayano, S, A, will pay an average amount of approximatély $13 million per vear,

20B) OTHER CONMM I_T&'IEN_TS'

In additions tothe contracts described above, As of Septemiber. 30,2016, the Company had the followings significant commitments:

In 2012, CEMEX Latam Holdings 5.A. through its branchl in Swiizerland eniered ifv fo the following dgreements;

i} Agreement with CEMEX, 8.A.B de C.V. for the use of CEMEXs trademarks. This contract has:a term of five. years and is automatically
renewable for cqual periods, unléss 1t is términated by either paity- o the contract providing notice one rionth before the: applicable
termination date. The Cempany must pay- annually the use of trademarks calculated based- on annual net sales of goods and services and
transfer prices. For the periods énded September 30, 2016 and 2015, the total expense for trademarks, use recognized in the operating.
expenses amounted $5,938'and 7,451, réspectively, '

i) Agreement with CEMEX Research. Group, A.G: for the use, operalion and enjoyment of assets: This contract hd.S aterm .of five years and i§
aummatu.ally rénewable for equal periods. unless if is tcrminated by either party previding netice one month. before the apphcab!e
términation datc. The Company must pay foyaltics caleulated annually based on annual net sales of goods. and services. For the periods
ended Suptcmbur 30, 2016 and 2015, the iotul royaliy expense recognized in the operating expenses amounted to-$27,339 and $27,564,
respeclively.

i) Agreement for the rendering of administrative serviges. with CEMEX Central, 8:A. de C.V. for the technical. fingncial, marketing, legal,

human resotrees and information technelogy areas, This contracl has-a term.of five: years, automatically renewable for equal periods, nless
it is terminated By either patt providing fotice one month before the' appll(:'lble termination date. The Company must pay annuatly the use of
these adininistrative services based on annual net-sales-of goods and services. For the periods ended Sepiembier. 30,2016 4nd 2015, the total
scrvices expense recognized in the operaling expenses amounted to $17, 330 andt $20.073, respeetively:

Arr order toavoid potential conflicts of interest between the Parent Company and CEMEX. S.A.B de €.V, CEMEX Espaiia and the subsidiaries-of
both. in October 2012; the Parent Company entéred nilo a Framework Agreemerit which became cfﬁ.ctne in November 2012. and which-may be
modified or terminated by written agrecment between. the Parent Company, CEMEX and CEMEX Espafia, for which the Paresit Compary will
require approval of its independent directors. In addition; the Framework Agreement shall cease to apply if the Company ceases 1o be subsidiary
of CEMEX. 8.A.B de C.V., oril'CEMEX, $.A.B dc C.V., is no-longer required to accouiit for its investment in the Parent Company either on a
cnnsolldalcd hasis.or undc1 1he equily method (or any other methad: that applies similarprinciples).
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Other commitmen(s ~ continwéd

= Pursuant to.the Framework: Agreement entered with CI"MLX SABde C. V and CEMEX Espafia, and in order te assist CEMEX, 8.A. BdeCV.
to ac.(.ompllsh its debt agreements; the Parent:Company will requive the prior conseént ‘of CEMEX. 8.A.B de €. V. and CEMEX Lispafia for:

a)  Any consolidation. merger or partnership with -a thivd parly.
by Any sale. lease, cxi:'hang_c or other disposition, acquisition to any person other than CEMEX.

¢y The issuance or sale of-any shares or derivative: equity securitics or the adoption of any stock-based incentive plan, except for: (i) the
issuance of shares by the Company 1o CEMEX, 'S .AB de C.V., and (ii) the isSuance of shares under the long-ieiny incentives plan that does
not exceed $1.75 milkion.

dy The: dcclaratlon decree or: payment of dividends or other distribution by the: Parent Company in connection with its shares sther than (i)
thlough the. ‘issuance- of common stocks of the Parent Company or the issuance. of the right to subscribe- ordinary shares of the Parent
Compny 1o the shareholders of the. Gompany proportionally. to the extent that isnot paid or iranslerreéd-to another pcrson wlio Is nol pait-6f
CEMEX (other than the Parent Company). cash or other assets of CEMEX. (or. any interest.in such cash or gssets) in conneetion with such
diswibution or interest, and/or (i) in propottion to the cquity interest of sach minority shareholder of the- Parent Company. to (he extent that
cach sharchelder réteives at the same. timie its. proportional shate in any dividend. distribution or interest payiiient,

e} The creation. nt.ﬂotlalmn frant or guaraniee by the Parent Campan\’ of any type of debt, and/or the chatmn of liens on any of its assels, Tor
a'tolal. ameunt over $25 million at dnytime for both concepts.

fy  Provide loans or become creditor in conmection with any type of debt, except: (i) with respect 10 sommereial loans. granted to customers on
normal commercial. terms and in the ozdinary course of business, and (if) as.deferved comperisation inf respect-of any sale, lease; exchange.or
olher disposition that the Parent Company or any-of its; subsidiaries are aulhorlzed to executg without the consent of CEMEX, SABde:CV,
and CEMEX Espafia,

g} Takeany-action that could resdlt on defawle for CEMEX, 5.A.B de C.V. undérany contract or agreément, under.its financing agreements and
any refinancing, relocation or modifications thereto, to the extent that all CEMEX, S.AR de C.V. notification oblipations idcluded.in the
Framework Agreement are fulfilled for contracts or agreements other than: {i) the C redll Agreement and any rcﬂnancma replacement. or
‘miodilication.théreto, and (i) the issuance of minutes of CEMEX, S.A.B de-€.V. and any réplacement or modification !.hc.rwf

»  Ad.mentioned in fole 20A, there arg other Commitments derived from' the Parent Company’s icase of its corpotate offices in Madrid with
CEMEX Espaiia as lessor signed on September 29, 2015, as well as a lease contract for its rescarch and- development offices in Switzerland.. In
addition. the Company is subject Lo compliance with CEMEX's.debt agreements, negatialed, among cihers, with CEMEX, S.A. B de C.V. ltsnlf
edch of which became effeétive upon the-completion of the global olféring,

« On June23, 2013, in relation \\fhlL the proyect Maceo (notes 13,218 y 22), the National Roads Institute {Institute Nacional de Vias or "INVIAS™)
authorized CEMEX Colouibia on its. owh account, risk and fi inancing, to perform the: necessary works for the development of a public
transportation infrastricture project denominated “Mejordimientoy Mantenimiento de la vid de dedeso a la Zona de Uso piblico.y Zonas Anexas
de la Zona Franca Permanente Especial Cementera del Magdalena Mediv”, including the construction-of two roads to the municipality of
Mateo and the township-of La Susana: The term for the complétion of the: “orl\s will be until December 31, 2016 and for the maintenance thereof
the term shall extend during the éeonomic exploitation of the Spetial Tax Zone dénominated Zong Francd Permanete Especial Cenentera del
Magdalena Medio.

¢+ On Jure 24 2015, CEMEX Soluciones. S.A.S.. ISAGER S.A.'and a third party subscribed a seltflemenl.agreement with Fiduciaria Bopota S.A, in
order to seile and resotve the claims belween the parties concerning the design, execution and- settlement of the urban infrastructure project £/
Recnerdn in ihe wtinucipallily of Montetia-and especially in conneetion with a Fiduciary contract signcd betweer the parties on July 9, 2013 for
the development of this housing project..

+ During the third quarter of 2013, CEMEX Colombia initiated scven housing projects for thé conétruction of 2.636 homes in“ihe state of the Cesar
{Depc:rfanwnm def Cesar) in Colombia tocated in-the municipalilies of San Alberto, Apuachica, Curuniarii, Astrea, Bécerril, San Dieso-and
Gamarra; a$ part of agreements. signed” in- 2014, Which originally t,I’l\’lSdged the comstruction of 2861 houses but were reduced by commen
ageement hetween the parties. The estimated sélling price of ihe project is for an amount-of approximalely Col$123 billion ($43 million). The
houses will be delivered gradually as they are concluded. In connection with these prajects. as of September 30,2016, customers haié inade
advance payments deposited with.a {rustee agent for an.amount.of appmmmatelv Col'$51 billion (818’ million) that partially guarantce payment
for The houses, and which will be released 10 CEMEX Colombia as houses are delivered to the satislaction of such customers. As of September
30. 2016, these housing prejects huvé a combined stage of completion of dpproxxmatcly 30%.
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Other commitments — continued

«  On July 30, 2012, CEMEX signed a 10-year strategic aprecment-with IBM, which includes CEMEX Latam and its subsidiarics, pursuant to
which IBM-will providé businiess processes servives and inforination techndlogy (“1T). Moreover, [BM-will provide-business: wnsultmg to
detect and promote sustainable improverments in CEMEX's profitability. The 10-year coptract d551gncd 1o IBM is expected 1o penerdie ¢ost
reductions: to CEMEX, measured ‘in respect to costs previously incurred in such- actjvities,-1o the extent thai progesses efficiencies would be
achitved during such 10-year period. The sérvices from IBM inchude: dala. processing services (back office) in finance. accounting and human
resources: as well ¢ 1T infrasiruciure servieés, ‘support.and maintenance of IT applications in the different eountries fn-which CEMEX operates,
including CEMEX Latam and .its’ Rubsldmrms The cost 10 be mcuru.d by the Company with IBM under: this agreement is of approximately $4
million pef year.

»  On December 20, 2007, Cémentos Bayano S.A. enlered into. a long-term- clinker supply contract in the Republic of Pagama with Cementd
Panami.-S.A. (Lurlcnti) Argos Panamd, S.A.). The-supply contract was established fora period of 10 years and includes annual partial deliveries
of clinker in fitliic wons {("MT") of I. 32() 715 MT For the permd froin 2015 to 2016.and 1,414,783 MT for the penod from 2017 16 2018.

21)  CONTINGENCIES
214) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RESULTING FROM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

CEMEX. Latartt is involved in varfous significant 1égal protesses, dther than the tax-related procedures which. are deséribed in note 17B. the
resolutions of which are deemed plobdbie and imply cash outflows or.the delivery of other resourtes owned by CEMEX Latam. Therefore. certain
provisions have been recorded in the financial statements, ILperanmg the best estimale of payments thereof. As a result, (,EMF‘( Latam considers
that there will niot be significant paynients in excess.of thie amounts dlreddv recognized.

As of September 30,2016, the only significant case considered individually is as follows:

« In 1999, several companies. belonging to the Laserna family filed an extra-contractual civil liability elaim against CEMEX Colombia. by means
of which the plaintifls demanded compensation for alléged damages caused to their land -with. effects on costs-and lower produutmn of their rice
crops as a result of solid pollutanis expelled by the chimneys of the "Bucnos Aires” and "Caracolito” cement production plants in. the department
of Tolima. In January 2004, the Fourth Circuit Civil Court.of Ihague issued 4 reselution ordering CEMEX Colombia 2. payment in favor of the
‘plaintilFs equivalent to approximately $9 million. CEMEX:Colombia appealed ihis resoluiion. On Seplember 10; 2010, the Superior Court of
Ibague fully revoked the resolution accepting the-defense arguinents .of CEMEX Colonibia, As of September 30, 2016, there is a provzsmn
associated with this Imganon for approximately . $9 milfion (note 18} congsidering the excharnige vate at the samic date. afid the process is in the
Supreme Court of Justice, where tire- -appeal resource filed by the plainti(fs js being processed,

21B) OTHERS CONTINGENCIES RESULTING FROM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As of September 30. 2016, CEMEX Latam isinvolved in various legal proceedings, in addition io those relaled to tax matters (note 17B), which have
not required the recognition of accruals based on the judgment elemienis af its disposali The Company consideis the likelihood of an advérse
resolution 1o be remote; nonetheless, it cannot assure that a favorable: resolution. in fhese procecdings will be obtained. The disclosure of facts of the
most significant proceedings with a quantification of the potential loss is as follows:

Market related proceedings

»  On September 3, 2013, the Colombian [ndustry and Commerce Authority {Superintendencia de Industria y Comercio or the “SIC7)- issued a
fesolution pursuant to which the SIC openéd an investigation against five cement coripani¢s and 14 directors of those comipariies, mcludmﬂ
CEMEX Colombia. And twoex employees of the company, for allegedly breaching rules which prohibit: @) to Jimait price fixing
agfeeinents: arid c) any market sharing agreements between producers or distéibutors. [n connection with the 14 executl\res under investigation,
the S1C may-sanction any individual who collaborated, facilitated, duthon?ed execuled or tolerated befavior that violates frée ebmpetition rules.
On OQctober 7. 2013, CEMEX Colombia responded the resolution and sibmitted cvidence in its relief, 1€ the alleged: infringements are
substanliated. aside from any measures that could be ordered to remediate the alleged pmctlLu- penaltics may be imposed by the SIC against
each coripany being declared in breach of the competition-rules for an cquivalent amonintin Colombiin pesos as of: [eptember 30, 2016.0f up {o
$22 million for-acli violation, and an- ¢quivalent of up-to $0.4 millipn against those individuals found responsible of collaborating. facilitating,
1uthormng execuling or tolerating behavior that violates free competjtion rules, It is expected that in: during the course of the second quarter off
2016, he Supn,rlnlcndt,nl Délégate for Competition Protection will iséué a non-binding report of the investigalion, which could pro\ridc a
récommendation to impesé sanclions or (0. close the investigation. CEMEX Lataim congidérs the likelihood of an” adverse resolution to be
remote; noncthcless, is not able 1o assess with cerlainty the likelihood of the SIC imposing any measures andfor pcnaitle% against CEMEX
Colombia, but if imposed, they coulid have a material adyerse. effect on the. Company’s results of operations. Ilquldll\ or linancial condiiion.
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Others contingencics resulting from legal praceedings - continued

«  On April 22, 2015, CEMEX Costa.Rica, was noh[’ud by the Competition Authority {Direccion de. Apaye a ko Competencia) of a request for
information issued by the Minisiry of Eeonomy, Industry and Trade of Costa Rica in connection with an study in the cement market that would
allow the gvaluation of price changes as well as to identify pogsible distortions and market barriers among other issues ‘in such caiintry. The
atdrementioned Information request rclatcs to-volumes, prices and. production costs from 2010 to date. The Company delivered the requested
information as of June 3, 2015 and collaborates &s necessary with the study mentioned. .As of September 30, 2016, the Company has. not being
informed olany recent devélopments in connéction withi this market study.

«  OnMarch 7. 2016, CEMEX Costa Rita was notified by the Competition Autharity by erder of the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Trade of
Costa, Rica, of a-request for information in order 10 initiate a customary preliminary: investigation;, to verify the existence of evidence in
anticompetitive practices; determine. market shares'in.the cement market anddocumient the geopraphical areas where cément.companies operate,
This. request, for information was issucd as a result of a claim issued by a third ‘paity. The conipany -delivered the information réquested on
March 18; 2016. and works as necessary in relation to-the. aforementioned rcqmrumcm In July-2016, the: Commission for the Promotion of
Campetition {COPROCROM) resolved that they can’t found evidence- of an anticompetitive practice, so thie was filed and the preliminary,
investigation were closed.

Environmental proecedings

«  On Junc-5, 2010, the: District- of Bogola’s Envirenmental Secretary (‘?ecrez‘ar:a Drm ital de Ambiente de Bogotd or the * Enumnmcntai
Sécrétary™) ordered thersuspension of CEMEX Colombia’s friining aciivities at El Tunjuels’ quarry, located in Bogotd. as well as those of other
aggregates producers in the same area, The Environmental Secretary alleged that- during: the past 60 years CEMEX Colombia and the other
companics have illegally changed the course of the Tunjuelo River, have used the percolating walers without permission and have improperly
used the edge of the river for mining activities, In connection with the: injunciion. on June 35,2010, CEMEX Colombia received a notificatien
fiom' the Environmental Secretaty informing the: initiation of proceedings 1o impose fines against CEMEX -Colombia hased on the above
mentioned alleged environmental violations: CEMEX Colombia responded to the injunction by requesting that it be revoked based on the fact
thai the mining activities at E1 Tunjuelo quarry are supported by the authofizations reqeired by the. applicable environmental Jaws and that ail the
environmental impact statements submitted by CEMEX Colombia have beén reviewed and permanently authorized by the. Mmlstry of
Environment and Sustainable Development (Ministerio de Ambiente y Desairollo Sostenible). On Junie 11, 2010, the local authoritics-in Bogot4,
in compliance with the' Environmental Sceretary’s decision, sealed off the mine to machinery and. pmhlblti.d the removal of CEMEX's
aggregidtes inventory, Although'there is'nét an official quannﬁcalmn of 1he pdssible fine, the Environniental Secrctary hias publicly declared 1hat
the fine could be up.to the equivalént amoint in Colombian pesos as of September 30, 2016 of approximately $104 million; The témpaoraiy
m_|unc11on has not compromise the- producuon and supply of ready-mix concrete to the Compdnv s clients in Colombia, At this stage; CEMEX
Latam considers the likelihood of an adverse teSolution to be remote; nonetheless, 16 not able to assess with- cerlamty the: likelihood of an
adverse resull .or potential damages which could be horme by CEMEX Colommbia. An adverse resolution in this case could have.d matcrial
adverse impact on CEMEX Tatam’s results of operations. liquidity or financial condilion.

« @0 March 11, 2013, 14 members of the surroundiriyy communitics of the cement plait in Panama filed 2 claim against Cemento Bayano, S.A
{“Cémento Bayano™), subsldlarv of the' Company in such country, for allcped breach of environmentsl regulationts as a result: 61 theton-métallic
mineral exploration in its quarries. ¥Moreover. they requested the review ol the envivonmental impact’ studies thal prolect new Taw materials’
guaitics af*the plant. These cotnmunity members are béing assisted by non-governmental Grpanizations atd chvirenmentalist groups aimed lo
impose .unfounded penaliies 1o the Company and to iry to encourage the cancellition of the riew quairies” environental impuet stidics. By
ruling from April 13, 2015, it was resolved 1o declare that the allegations in connection with water pollution, crosion control, airquality, impact
¢ontrol of protected dreds be worthy of investigation. Such- resotution was notified on April 27, 2015 on May 3. 2013, a motion for
reconsideration was presenited theteof. The Environmental Awthority (Administracion Regional Metropolitana del Ministerio de Ambiente)
resolved not to support the motion for reconsideration and-continued the investigation, On.June 13 and 16, 20135 the Environmental Autharity
condicted a physical inspection is corroborated that are not evidence of the allegations.

In conncetion with the aforementioned inspection to Cementg Bayano, pursuant (o the Téchnical Tnspection Report. issusd on July 2, 2013, i
was concluded that the purportcd claims. were not evidenced during the physical inspeetion. By means o an ¢dict posted from December 23;
2015 and remioved on December 24, 2015, the Enviconmental Authorily notified Centento Bayano a ten working days period to present its
allegations and exculpatory evidence. On Jandary’ L1, 2016, Cemento Bayana filed the wrilten arguments and presented evidence. within .the
administrative process. Al ihi¢ end of January 2016, the process was referred to the recently created Regional Administration of North Paniama
the Ministry of the'Environment, {fdministracion Regional Panamd Norte del Minisierio de. Ambiente) w, hich. by Resolution of, September 12,
2016, ‘admitied. and rejected evidence. As of Scptember 30. 2016, the authoi ities have not issuéd any recent dcvulopmgnts Fines .on
cnvuonmcnt'il matters do not. have a fimit in the -norm, but dept,nd on the severity of the damage, recidivism, investmients level and the
economic.situation ol the ofiender; Af-this stage, Cermento Bayano considérs remote the probability and adverse ruling; nonetheless, is not able
to asses with certainty the likehihood of an adverse result or potential damages which coild be determined ‘to the Company. An adverse
resolufion inhis case could have a material adverse impact on the Company”s resulls, nf{}pprdtlonb liquidity- or Gitanciat condition,

In th ordingry course 6f business, the Company i is subject 1o extensive laws and regulations on environmental issues.in each of thc |1|r15d1c110n<; in
which it operates. These laws and regulations. impose- increasingly stringent environmental protection standards regdrdmg ait poliutant emiséions,
wastewaler ‘discharges. the-use-and handling of hazardous materidls or waste disposal practices and the remediation of pollution or environmenial
damage. Among other things, these laws and regulations expose the Company o @ risk.of substantial cnvironmental costs and responisibilities,
including rn.spon&bn]mu\ associaled with divested assets and past activities and, in some cases, 1o the acts and oriissions of Prior:owners of operalors
of‘a propefly or- plant. Also. in some jurisdictions. cérlain environmental laws and regulations impose obligations without regard the fault or the
legality of the original activity atthe momert of the actions which gave rise to the responsibility.
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Other proceédings [egal

In respeet to the proceedings initinted in Augnst 2005 whereas CEMEX Colombia was indicated as a civil responsible third party in connection
with the premature damages of the concrete slabs in the Main North Highway of Transmilenio’s public transport system inBegota, where it was
used reddy-mix concrete and flowable fill ‘supplied by CEMEX Coloinbia and other members of the Colombiatr Association of Concrete
Producers’ ("ASOCRETO") Thic plaintiffs argue that the material supplied did not meet the: quality standards offered by CEMEX Colombia and
the other defendants; and that information about the qualities and propertics of the products offered was insuflicient and inadequate; on Octobér
18, 2012, & Circuit Critinal Court iti. Bogota sentenced the former directar of the [nstitute of Urban Development {the "IDU™, and two former
officials of the. IDU o 85 nionths in prison and a fine. cquivaleiil to approximately $11: as a result of thie-purported ‘offenises .of culpable
pecufation-and unlawful negotiation of contracts, in the execution of the works of the dforementioned .and declared the invalidily of any charges

dgainst two officials of ("ASOCRETG"). On August 30, 2013,-as a result of an appeal by the IDU, the Supcnol Court of Bt.)gma resolved, among

other things: to, reduee 1o 60 monthis.the sentence, 10 impose. 4 eolleclive finc oni thosé officials-in Colombian pesos for an amount equivalent to
approximatcly $38 million at the exchange rate as of September 30, 2016, dnd to revoke the nullity decreed. in favor of ASOCRETO" oificers,
and ordered the [irst instance judge to issue- a};udgme_nl concerning the guiht ar innocence of such ASOCRETQ officers,

On January 21.. 2813, the Cireuit Crifninal Cotirt of Bogota declared the prescripiion of the érimiingl action iriliated against thé ASOCRETO
officers. The judge. a(.nepled the arguments. presented by CEMEX Colombia in' respect that the accused officers were not public servaiits;

thicrefore, declared the preseription of the crimifial action since 2012, The decision was subject 10 appeal and was subsequently confirmed by the
‘Criminal Chamber of the Superior Court of Bdgota. As a-result of the criminal aclion against the ASOCRETO officers being prcscnbcd also

ceased the action against CEMEX Colombia in its conditioft of supposedly civil responsible third party.

In conncetion-with these proceedings related with the premature damages of Transmilenio’s public uansport system, in which. the costs.of repair
works have beert-calcilated in an-amount in Colombian pesos equivalent t6 approximately $335 million al the -.,\changc rafe as of September-30).
2016, an Adm}mstrmve Court in"Bogowa issued s first instance. resolution, considering most of the drguments raised In its defense by CEMEX
Colombia. récognizing that the {lowable fill (supplied by CEMEX Colombm} is not the cause of the purported damages. and that the
alorementioned damages resulted from failures in ‘planding, €xecution and superyision olthe work. The first instance resolution was appealed;
nenetheless, considering conditions precedent of the case. it would be difficult lor thg sscond mstance judee to revoke the previous resolution.

Lik€wise. in felated procecdings, the Adminisirative Tribunal of Cundinamarca-decidred the nullity of five class actions filed in conneetion with
the aforementionied damages, and decided to proceed:with the poputar action filed by a citizen. To this ¢lass action are linked the IDU, the Mayor
of Bogota, the builder. the controller.and the'suppliers of materials for this work.

CEMEX Colombia participated i this project solely and exclusively-as a supplier of materials, which wére recéived by the builder to satisfiction
of the work, and no quality claims havé been raised tothe date.of these financial siatements. As of September 30, 2016, CEMEX Latam tonsiders
the likelihood -of an adverse: rcsolulmn to be remote; nonetheless; an unfay orable resolution -could have an adverse effect on its resulls of
operations. 11quidm or financial posilion.

Tn relation to the. construction of a new cement plant at the municipality-of Maceo (Department of Antioyuia, Colombia, seé (note 13). In August
of 2012, CEMEX Colombia signed a memoraridum of understanding (MOU) with the legal representative of the.selling entity CI Calizas y
Minerales 5.A.("CI Calizas™). Thie: MOU’s objective was the acquisition and concession ‘of assels consistent of lands (Monterrey Farm at
municipility of Maceo, Antioquiz), the mining title, gnvironmental permit. and- the totality of shares of Zoni Franca Espccial Cementera del
Magdalena Medio $.A.S, (“Zomam”), this entity being the holder of the special tax and trade zone concession, as well as the:derivative rights of
the Trust. contract betieen Accién Sociedad Fiduciaria 8,A., CL-Cilizas and Zomam, to exccute the construction of the new cement plant. Afier

signing the MOU, a former sharcholdei of CI Calizas who had transférred ils shages 1wo vears before the MOU was signed,- was linked 10 an
exphation’ of property legal process, initiated- by the Fiscalia ‘General de la Nacién (Colombia’s General Attorney). based on- a complaint
presenied by the DIAN, and iu consequence of the initiation” of this procéss. the Geéncral Attarney, amongst other measures, suspendcd the
powers gratited 10 CI Calizas, to dispose of asscts offered 1o/ CEMEX Colombia, To protect its-interests, CEMEX Colorhbia: made itself ‘part of"
the expiration of property legal process, and requested. for the measures that alfected the asséls (o be iradmissible. Ta consequence, on July 2013,
CEMIX Colombia signed a lease coniract with DlreLcmn Nacional de Estupefacientes (a government institution. interim custodian of the assets

“DNE") for' a dutation of fve years unless términated in antitipation; DNE wus {ater Ilqu1dalcd and its functions taked by Socicdad de Activos
Egpeciales $AS, (“SAET). The lease contract authorised ihe construction and start-up of the cerent plant, protecting in this. way. all works and
investments that CEMEX Colombia had been execuling fo date, and equilly, a similar mandate was granted io CI Calizas with the same purpose.
On May 3. 2016, The Genetal Attorney Resolved 16 hegate thé inadmissibility of the expirdtion of property legal process that aflecis the asiets,
the mining title, and the special tax and trade Zone concgssion, afl of them part of Project Maceo already meationed in MOU; signed with CI
Calizas. The process can be extended in time, estimated between 2 and 4 years, For the General Attorney, it is'necessary 1o produce proofs that
clearly demonstrate- the origin of the fands with which the dssets wére dequired, meaning those asséts subject to prlratlon of propetty legal
process. and-manifests, that even then it is.not clear How the ald CI Calizas shargholdsr could be un-linked, and in ¢ontiary, considers. that there
are indicaions that there was intervention from the ofd: sharchofder-on the businesses of CL Calizas, even after its retirement from the partiership
012010, Subject to this legal process being resolved, CEMEX Colombid plans to negotiate and exfension ta the lease terms.
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Other proceedings Iegal - continued

As .of September 30, 2016, CEMEX Colombia hias made investmenits for approximately $280 million in Macco praject. CEMEX Colombia
considers that its inveésiments in the developmert of the plant was effecied with the consent of thé SAE und CI Calizas by virtue of the. lease
contract and mandate bascd-on the legislation of Colombia; Nev ertheless; if there isa‘final adverse resolution of the-atithority affecting the ussets
subject to the expiration of properly fegal process, and if CEMEX Culombla exihausts all legal resources available against the udverse resolution,
anry such resolution could have a material adversé effect on.the Companys results of operations, liquidity or financial position,

In relation to the MOU, CEMEX Colombia also. contracted the same representative from the seliing entity to represent CEMEX Cdlombia in thic
acquisition of lands adjacent to project Maceo, then siphing a new MOU. An {ntersal audit reveéaled that CEMEX Colombia made payments
equivalent for approximately $20.5-infllion to said person representing both CI Calizas and CEMEX Colombia. Such paymeénts. were deposited in
the person’s: account as-advances payments for the MOU, and for the purchase of land (both -directly for project Maceo and the.-addilicnal
adjacent fand). the nilning Gitlé. the special tax and trade. zonc and the environmental license that CEMEX Colombia intended to.acquire, this
without the mentiahed MOUs being the legal instruments that accerding 16 Javw should have bieen formalized for the reqpectwe acquisitions, given
that such MOU's only disclose ihat ihe parties-(case for the MOU :_;ubs_c_nhed with CI Calizasy will do their best effort lp_c_ulmlmtc the necessary
process [or the acquisition and transfer of rights of the mentioned assets, and respect o the MOU subscribed with Mr, Eugenio Correa (acting as
représentaiive [or thie MOU with €I Calizas); this constitutéd. a mandate. for this persen 16 acquire, oh- his own and on CEMEX Colombia’s
behalf, land adjacent to project Maceo; in consequence; CEMEX Colombia is not. to-this date; the legitimale owner of thc alrcady ciled assets. Ag
described incnoie 1. the cxecutives rcspon.mblu. for the implementation and exccution of such payments, were recently dismissed from the
companiy. and:ihe CEO'6F CEMEX Latam and President of CEMEX Colombii resigned. Payments made. by CEMEX Colombia for the purchase
of asscis. shares and transier of the lgase contract for mining with the environmental permit. as well as the udjacent lands to the eémetit plant;
were made in violation of CEMEX"s and CEMEX Latam internal pcll{:les In consequence, CEMEX Latam and CEMEX C(:Iombid made these
facts-be known, ‘as well as thc elements fotinds during the internal audit, for the General Attorney to lake approprldtt. ‘actions,’ Accrc)rdmﬂ to the
reguisites from the audit commitee.of CEMEX, S.AB. dec CV, .and from the audit commiission 6f CEMEX Latam Hﬂldmys. external- dttOInL}"i
have been contracted Lo assist: CEMEX Latam and C JMLX Colombia on the necessary collaboration with the General Atforney. ‘According (o
internal controfs of CEMEX Latam and common practice. a team of external audilors experis in forensic audits has been incorporated, and such
team to collaborate with the cxterrially contracted attorneys; the external aquditors are already in the process of revision of the documentation
produced by the internal audit. 1n relation o the irregularities detected in the purchase process of assets.. property of CI Calizas, and additional
tand dlready mentioned, that Ted to the dctivation of the internal audit, the dismissa} of implicated executives and the filed complaints, we were
informed by the General Attorney of the activation bfan m\rcsllgalion on their part about the facts and.the-filed complaints. To the date of the
financial slatements, the investigation led by General Attorney is.on the initial phase, in which. the company is not able fo-predict actions that this
office could implement. nor the probability or grade that whichever of these agtions, including the dismissal of the already referericed executives,
could Have adverse effects, material to the results of operation, liquidity ot financial. situation of CEMEX Latem. The company will collaborate
with the Colombia’s General Altarney in everything riccessary for the investigation.

n rélation- 1o project Maceo and the facts mentioned in prcvzou‘: paragraphs, to the date of (he fmdncml statements, the elements of judgmcnt
available to the Compdny, do net allow te determine if it-has inclurred on any loss with réspect to invéstments; aiready mentioned. made in the
project us of Scptember 30, 2018, and that include the investments by means of the MOU in the purchase of land, the lease contract for the
mining-operation together with the environmental permit. the special tax and trade zone by means of the Zomam socicty, investments for which
no provision has-been made (or Josses on the financial statements, and a8 such the invesiment are kept at their historic cost. pénding the outcome
of ongoing inv estigations,. gathering of more-evidence and Lhe resolutions pronogneed by the authorities. I is impoitdnt to 1mcntion- that under
Colembian law, if a person is.authorized to utilise and build on the property of a third pacty, it-being the government through domain processes.
or the seller, if the'processes are declared dnfounded. the person is subject 1o compcnmtron for alt the improvemeénts and buildings constructed, in
case that the owner would prefér to recover land possession. or by bther means, to s¢ll the land to the: person in reference. Because of this, thie
company considers that it will be able-to secure both the land ownership and the mining, title, in order to operate the plarnt with normality.
Notwithstanding. had this not been the case, CEMEX Colombia will take all necessary actions to-sateguard lhe project in Macceo,

a In addition. The DIAN informed that con51dcrmg thai CE\/I[:X Colombia has made the majority of the investments in its oWwn name, CEMEX
Colombiashould procecd to transfer thiase investments (o the entity Zona Franca. prucml Cementera del Magdalena Medip S.AS (“ZOMAM™),
and atlest its statiss as sharcholder 6f ZOMAM, in order to justify the investments made in the construction project. I the éveni of a failed
allestalion, the cotity. ?OMAM would-incur in breach of its commitments,. and {hurt,l ore. tHe DIAN would be obliged to declare this situation dnd
the loss of the special lax zotie status of ZOMAM. Considering the above. CEMEX Colombia through an e‘strdord:nary Board of Directors™
meeting held on-December 11, 2015, approved: a) Coneluding (he acquisition of all shares ol the entity ZOMAM, and b) the capitalization of
assets from CEMEX Colombla as'a sharcholders of ZOMAM, in ordir to. comply with the request of the DlAN In- connection with the
aforementioned, aif legal documentation and accounting records were. made in CEMEX- Colombia and ZOMAM, with which CEMEX Colombia
is 100% owncr of ZOMAM aird the DIAN was informed regarding the compliance with the requirements in order to keép ZOMAM’s status of
special fax zone (note 22). The assets of ZOMAM, the Free Trade Zone, are within the domain extinctich process mentioned above.
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Other-proceedings legal— continned

» On lul} 34, 2008 the Panamanian Authority of Civil Aeronawtics {Auraridad de Aeiondniica Civil de Pandma or AAC) inifially refuséd the
application of Cemento Bayang, o build structures above the permitted height restriction. applicable to certairi. arcas: surrouniding the Calzaida
Larga Airport which affécted the: coristruction of the cement plant’s second line, On Outober 14, 2008, as per Cemento Bavano's. request Tor
reconsideration, the AAC granted permission for the construction, of the tallest. butlding ‘61 the second liné, vider the following coiditions; that
{a) Cemento Bayano assurnes any liability arising from dny incident or adeident causcd by the construction-of such building, arid (b) there \\ould
be no further permissions for -additional struetures. In .connection with the construction of the: remaining 12 buildings of the sceoind line of the
plant, ori March 13..2009. the AAC issued an explanatoty note stating that: {2) should -an accident occur in the Cafzada Larga Airport’s
perimeter, an lnvestlg,almn shall he conducted in order to determine -the. cause.'and further responsibility: and (b} there will be rio -further
permissions [or additional structures of the: same height as the fallest structure already authorized.

As a result; additional permits may be-obtained as long as. the situcturés arc lower than the tallest building..on a case by case analysis to be
conducted by the authority. Cemento Bayano filed an anthorization request for the cotistiuction of the project’s 12 femaining structures, Qo
Scptember 11, 2009, the AAC issued & resolution. authorizing 3 -of the 12 remaining structures and-denying. permits to 9 additional structures
dbove the permiitéd” hc1ght restriction applicable to cérlain: areas surrsunding Calzada Large Airport. On September 16, 2009, Cemento Bayano
requested the AAC to reconsider its demial. On May 20, 2010, the AAC issued a report. stating lidl all vertical structures erected by Cemento
Bayano complied with the applicable sipnaling and Ilghtlng requircments in order 1o Teceive the respective authorization: norctheless. On.fuly 17,
2015 was held meeting with the Legal Services of AAC in order to- give impetns 1o pr()(.et.dmﬂs pending approval, to this date waiting the
resolution replénishment the expedient since it was stray. Asof September 30, 2016, the AAC had not yet issued a ruling regarding-the request ta
review the remaining 9 stmctures.

To this date, the risk has decreased substanitially sinéé the buildings have béen buili and are operating, and the {ikelihood of such buildings bung
closed down By the, authorities is very low. but’would be fully mifigatcd whién Cemento Bayano obtains. the approval of the authority, which 15
ekpected Lo be. a.u,ompllshmg during this new Government administration. However: il adverscly resolved, dnd aficr céxhausting all available
recourses, the Company cannot predict the resolutions that may be issued or whether such resolutions would have.an‘adverse impact.on its results
of operations, liguidityor financial condition. Morcover, the Company is unablc to 4ssess with certainty the likelihood of any-incident or accident
occurring us a result of the aforementioned constructions, and the responsibility. iFany, that would be allocated to Cemerito Bayano, butif any
major incident-or accident weré Lo occur-and if Cemento Bayano were to be held liable, any rt,spousmzlm’ that would. he formally dliecated 19
Cemento Bayano could have a material adverse impact on the results of Operatwnq liquidity and fitiancial condition-of the Company.

In addition, as of September 30, 2016. the Company is involved in various. legal proceedings of minor impact that. have arfsen‘in the ordinary course
of busiiicss: These " pmceedlngs involve: 1} product warranty cldims: 2) claims for Lmlmnmu)tdl damages; 3). Indunmty clalms refating to
acquisitions: and 4) other similar claims brought against us that have arisen fin the: orditary coiirse of business.

22)  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As of October,10, 2016. CEMEX Colombia received a request for. information, issyed by -Superintenidencia Financiera de Colombia (Financial
Superintendence -of Colombia, “SPF™). in rclation to the communications made by the: Company to RCg!bIIO Nacional .de Valores y Emisores
{National Registry of Sccuritics.and Issuers, “RNVE™)n rclition to the construction of the plant at Maceo, the MOU subscribed with CH-Calizas: and
about the lease contract, subscribed with theholder of certain assets. as describéd in note 1and 218 of th firancial statemienis, The. company replicd
L6 the.request on Octobier 24, 2016, and awaits for-any other additional requests.

On October 27, 2018, CEMEX Latam Heldings communicated it’s decision (o postpone the stact-up of plant Maceo, for the lollowing reasons that
emerged [rom the audlts alrcady in progress: (i) there are pending permits required te finalise the road access to the-plant 4t Maceo. Inthe event that
tllObt.. permits are obtained, CEMEX . Latam Holdings cstimates that read actess could ‘be concluded and be leady for usc until July 2017. Usmg the
only existing-access Lo the plant instead of the one under construction, weuld risk-the safety of (he operation and wotild probably limit the capacily to
transport products. from the: plant at ‘Maceo; (iiy CEMEX Colombia has Tequested an expansion 10 (he special tax and'tradé zone: lo.commission the
new clinker line at Maceo without such expansion would risk CEMEX'$ capability to-consolidate the fiscal benefits that would otherwise be
available for CEMEX Colombid. It is. possible thal a final deeision cannot be taken: with respeet to ‘theexpansion of the free trade one, due to the
expiration of property proceeding alread} on course, With the objective of protecting the henélits fo be had with the specidl tax and trade zone,
CEMEX Latam [Toldings. will et commission the clinker line until the speciat 1ax and trade-zane is expanded Lo cover the: totality of the cement
plant at Macco;-and (iii) one of CEMEX: Latam Holdings subsidiaries, Ceniral de. Mezclas S:A., holds the environmental permit for project Macceo,

however. the. tmnal‘er of the. mitling concession ‘was not’ fomnllsecl because the:Tegistry -of transfer was not Lomplet(.d in the mining registry, Iy
consequence, the environmenital permit and the: mining concession are in custody of different entitics, contrary (0 cormen practice: In any casc,
‘CEMEX Colembia will continue: use .aid beneli{ of the land, and exercise he environmental and the mining. rlghts under the contracts in place,

subscribed with the custodian designated by the SAE. CEMEX Latam Holdings has also. detérmined thal the. .Mmining permit. issued lor Project
Maceo, pamally overlaps with integrally managed district. CEMEX Colombia :will seek, with the corresponding duthotities, if conforming to.
Colombian normative applicable, the environmental rights from the permit can-continue 1o be exercised as such,-and gn the basis of the principle of
presumption of lepatity, Moreover, CEMEX Colombia. has dlso conlirmed that the cnwronmunlal permit needs modilications in order to allow
increments ol production of up to 950,0000 tons per year of mineral exploitation, as required.. It is possible that this, process could be affected by the
expiration of property legal process currently on ¢ourse. CEMEX Colombia will continue to work to address-lhese mattcrs as soon as possible,
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Subscquent eyents — continned

According o projected consumiption determined by CEMEX Latam Holdings. and markel growth in Colombia, and taking into account existing
capacity {excluding. the ‘plant at Maceo), CEMEX Latam Holdings doés riot . anticipalc negative effects over”its commercial operations. frotm
postponing the stari-up of the plant-at Maceo, However, CEMEX Latam ]loldlngs will continug to work on the start-up of the plant gs spon as
Teasonably possible, with the.objective of proleciing the comp]ctc bencfits of this nstallation, in -its operational cfficiencies in Colombia, and to
coniribute to the-development of the regioh.

23)  MAINSUBSIDIARIES.

The-Parerit Company’s main direet and indirect subsidiaries as of September 30,°2016 and December 31, 2015 areas follows:

Subsidiary Country Activity % of interest
Corporacion Cementera Latinoamericana, $:L.U. % i vt sstose s, Spain Parent 104.0
LLMFX Bogota Imt.stm(.nts Bv.t. Thc_Nc'_t'I)ei‘iands Parent 100.0
CE\/II‘X Colombn S.A. . OO O URROPUURRPUTOUPRNE &+ [ 13151} Opérative 997
CEMEX {Costa Rica). S.A, .-Costa Rica ‘Operative 94,1
CEMEX Nicaragua, SA. Nicaragua, Operative 100.0
CEMEX Finarice Latam. B.V, 2. oo eetevssreesresres e veansess ... The 'Netherlands. Finance 100.0
Cemento Bayano; 8.A. . e PO PORPOMOPPON 14t 11:7: Operatiye 099.5
Cimentos Vericemos do. Amazmlds llda PSP SUR OO 2 v | Operative 100.0
CEMEX Guateimalz. S.A. NS S 0¥ PP AP IVAVOONE P PPN €131 T 1 Operative 100.0
Equipos para nsoen Guatemala, S.A. . ... Guatemala Operative 100.0
CEMEX ELSalvadon S e e s eish e s sanees ... B1 Salvador ‘Orperative. 100.0
“nversiones SECOYA S.A. i e s INICATEERA Qperative 100.0

t CEMEX-Lalan Holdings, S.A., indirecily controls through Corporacién. Cemeittera Latinoamericania, S.LA% and CEMEX Bogetd Investments, B.V., (he
operations ol'the Parent-Company-in C olombia, Costa Rica, Nlcaraﬂua Panama, Brazil, Guatemala,and Bl Salvader. On June 22,2016, the manageimem of Ct.l'lle\
Bogotd Investments B.V. aid .Corporatién Cemcnfera Latmoamumana S.L.U. signed a joint mefger project by absorption of the first entity by the.secand
company. The:said merger will be effective from October 3, 2016,

2 Cemex Latain Finance B.V. was constituted on July 3, 2013 with the approval of the C ompalw s Board of Directors at its meeting held on. Ma} ? 201.‘) prior
favorable report of the Audit Commiltee.



